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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

In closing remarks to this letter last year, I stated that I was looking' forward to reporting to
you on continued progress in 2004. It is with great pleasure that I report asset growth in excess of
10%, loan growth in excess of 18%, and deposit growth in excess of 4%. Accompanying this
growth, there has been a tremendous improvement in both net income and earnings per share of over
88%. These facts reflect significant progress for this past year, as expected.

The growth during 2004 was achieved without adding locations, although we did move into
our new and expanded full-service facility in Pelham, Alabama, after outgrowing our leased facility.
In 2005, we look to grow in existing branches, as well as through expansion of locations. We
recently purchased land in Calera, Alabama, to be the home of our ninth First Financial location.
Evaluation of additional sites targeted in other nearby growth areas is always a consideration.

In reviewing our financial performance for 2004, there are some key items I would like to
address. First, there was improvement in net interest spread. The interest rate spread in 2003 was
2.9% and increased to 3.1% in 2004. If interest rates continue to increase, it is projected that the net
interest spread, as well as income, will continue to rise. Second, deposit-related fee income
increased 54% in fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003. This improvement is attributable primarily to a new
Overdraft Privilege Program. Third, an offsetting factor to the 2004 improved earnings was
approximately $550,000 of expenses associated with completing and disposing of foreclosed assets.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your continued support and interest in
our Company. [ would also like to express my appreciation to the officers and employees of the
Company that worked hard to achieve this progress in 2004. 1 know that they are dedicated. to
continuing on this path of progress. The Company is focused on continuing to report enhanced
results and providing the best personal banking services to the communities it serves.

Sincerely,
B. K. Goodwin, HI

Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and President
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COMPANY DATA
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PART]

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:
THE COMPANY

FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, is a bank holding company that has registered as a
financial holding company. The Company also serves as the holding company for First State Corporation (“"FSC”). FSC
is the sole shareholder for First Financial Bank (“First Financial” or the “Bank”).

The Company's assets consist primarily of its subsidiary investment and liquid investments. It engages in no significant
independent activity. The Company had total assets of $214,443,000, total deposits of $157,545,000 and stockholders’
equity of $18,418,000 at December 31, 2004.

The Company’s earnings are primarily dependent upon the net interest income of First Financial, which is the difference
between the income derived from interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest expense incurred
oninterest-bearing liabilities, primarily deposit accounts. Net interest income is affected by (i) the difference between rates
of interest earned on interest-earning assets and rates of interest paid on its interest-bearing liabilities (“interest rate spread™)
and (ii) the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. When intercst-earning assets
approximate or exceed interest-bearing liabilities, any positive interest rate spread will gencrate net interest income.

The Company's executive office is located at the main office of First Financial, 1630 Fourth Avenue North, Bessemer,
Alabama 35020. The telephone number is (205) 428-8472.

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank’s principal business consisted of attracting deposits from the general public and
investing those deposits in one-to-four-family residential mortgage loans, commercial mortgage loans, commercial loans
and consumer loans. The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") System and its deposit accounts
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to the maximum amount allowable by the FDIC.
The Bank was subject to regulation, examination and supervision by the FDIC and the State Banking Department of the
State of Alabama (the “Banking Department™).

The Bank conducts business from eight locations in Bibb, Jefferson, Shelby and Tuscaloosa Counties, Alabama. consisting
of its home office in Bessemer and seven other branches, one each in Centreville, Hoover, Hueytown, Pelham, Vance,
West Blocton and Woodstock. Each branch is a full-service facility.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity refers to the ability of the Company to meet its cash flow requirements in the normal course of business, including
loan commitments, deposit withdrawals, liability maturities and ensuring that the Company is in a position to take
advantage of investment opportunities in a timely and cost-efficient manner. Management monitors the Company’s
liquidity position, and reports to the Board of Directors monthly. The Company may achieve its desired liquidity objectives
through management of assets and liabilities and through funds provided by operations. Funds invested in short-term
marketable instruments, the continuous maturing of other interest-earning assets, the possible sale of available-for-sale
securities and the ability to securitize certain types of loans provide sources of liquidity from an asset perspective. The
liability base provides sources of liquidity through deposits. The Company also has accessibility to market sources of funds
such as FHLB advances, purchase of Fed Funds and correspondent bank borrowings. The Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, included in the Annual Report, provides an analysis of cash from operating, investing, and financing activities for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004.

Sources of liguidity discussed in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements include: Note 2 - “Maturity of Securities
Portfolio” and Note 8 - “Maturity Distribution of Deposits”. Also, see “Loan Maturity” and “Deposits, Borrowings and
Other Sources of Funds™ herein for additional sources of liquidity.

No trends in the sources or uses of cash by the Company are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
liquidity position. The Company believes that the current level of liquidity is sufficient to meet current and future liquidity
requirements.




KEY OPERATING DATA

The following itable summarizes certain key ratios for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Return on average total assets

Return on average equity

Average equity to average total assets
Dividend payout ratio

2004

37%
4.17%
8.93%

109%

2002

11%

1.08%

10.46%
389%



AVERAGE BALANCES, YIELDS EARNED AND RATES PAID

The tollowing tables set forth certain information relating to the Company's consolidated statements of financial condition for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and reflects the average yield on assets and average cost of liabilities lor the periods indicated.
Average balances are derived subject to certain adjustments from daily balances. The average balances of loans include non-accrual loans.
For turther discussion. see Item 6. "Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation”.

2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average
Balance Interest Balance Interest Balance Interest

(In thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ 153,015 $ 8,688 §$123,023 $ 7,473 $106603 $ 8429
Securities 25915 1,150 27,940 1,373 33,280 1,916
Other interest-carning assets 3.787 13 18,243 159 27,519 320
Total interest-earning assets 182,717 9.851 169,206 9.005 167.402 10,665
Non-interest-earning assels 22,627 18611 14,585
Total assets $ 205,344 $187.817 $ 181,987
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits $ 155,485 $ 2957 §$148,092 $ 3,137 $145094 § 4,021
Borrowings 30,562 1,233 18,285 900 17.504 895
Total interest-bearing liabilities 186,047 4,190 166,377 4,037 162,598 4916
Non-interest bearing liabilities 955 2694 808
$ 5661 $ 4968 $ 5749
Total liabilities 187.002 169,071 163,406
Stockholders' equity 18,342 18,746 18,581
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 205,344 $ 187,817 $ 181,987
2004 2003 2002
Yield on:
Loans 5.68% 6.07% 791%
Securities (1) 444 4.92 5.76
Other interest-earning assets 0.37 0.87 1.16
All interest-earning assets 5.39 5.32 6.37
Rate paid on:
Deposits 1.90 2.12 2.77
Borrowings 4.03 4.92 5.11
All interest-bearing liabilities 2.25 2.43 3.02
Interest rate spread (2) 3.14% 2.89% 3.35%
Net yield (3) 3.10% 2.94% 3.43%

(1) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a full federal tax-exempt basis using an income tax ratc of 34% for 2004,

2003 and 2002.

(2) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on total interest-carning assets and the average rate of total

interest-bearing liabilities.

(3) Net yield represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.




RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities have aftected the Company's interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated. [nformation is provided
in cach category with respect to (i) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate), (ii) changes
attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplicd by prior volume), and (iii) the net change. The changes attributable to the
combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate.

Net interest income increased $693,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the year ended December 31, 2003,

2

Increase (decrease) in interest earned on:

Loans

Securities

Other interest-earning assets
Total

Decrease (increase) in interest paid on:
Deposits
Other borrowings
Total

Net increase (decrease) in net
interest income

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Versus Versus
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Volume Rate Net, Volume Rate Net
(In thousands)
$ 1,650 $ (435) $1215 $ 1,874 $(2,830) $ (956)
(95) (129) (224) (284) (259) (543)
(66) (19) (145) (92) (69) (161
1,489 (643) 846 1.498 (3,158) (1,660)
(167) 347 180 (54) 938 884
(456) 123 (333) &) 3 (5)
(623) 470 (153) (62) 941 879
$ 866 $ U473 $ 693 1,436 2217 $ (781)




ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The principal objective of the Company’s asset and liability management process is to maximize profit potential while
minimizing the vuinerability of its operations to changes in interest rates by means of managing the ratio of interest rate
sensitive assets to interest rate sensitive liabilities within specified maturity or repricing periods. The asset and Hability
management process is dependent on numerous assumptions, many of which require significant judgments by the Company.
The Company’s actions in this regard are taken under the guidance of the Bank’s Asset Liability Committee ("ALCO™) that
is comprised of members of senior management. The ALCO generally meets quarterly and is actively involved in
formulating the economic assumptions that the Company uses n its financial planning and budgeting process and
establishes policies which control and monitor the sources, uses and pricing of funds. The ALCO manages the Company’s
interest rate risk position using both income simulation and interest rate sensitivity “gap” analysis. The ALCO has
established internal parameters for monitoring the income simulation and gap analysis. These guidelines serve as
benchmarks for evaluating actions to balance the current position against overall strategic goals. The ALCO monitors
current exposures and reports these (o the Board of Directors.

The Company has employed various strategies intended to minimize the adverse effect of interest rate risk on future
operations by providing a better match between the interest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilitics. The strategies are
intended to stabilize net interest income for the long-term by protecting the interest rate spread against fluctuations in
market interest rates. Such strategies include the origination for portfolio of adjustable-rate mortgage loans. Other
strategies include seeking to maintain a stable core deposit base with a relatively high percentage of low cost deposits. The
matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such assets and liabilities are "interest
rate sensitive” and by monitoring an institution's interest rate sensitivity "gap". An asset or liability is said to be interest
rate sensitive within a specific period if it will mature or reprice within that period. The intcrest rate sensitivity gap is
defined as the difference between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period
and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that 1ime period. A gap is considered positive
when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities, and is considered
negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets. Generally,
during a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would adversely affect net interest income while a positive gap would
resultin an increase in net interest income. Conversely, during a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would result
in anincrease in net interest income and a positive gap would negatively affect net interest income. At December 31,2004,
the cumulative one-year gap was slightly negative using the indicated assumptions. The primary reason for this is that a
relatively large base of deposit products do not reprice on a contractual basis. These deposit products are primarily
traditional savings accounts and transaction interest-bearing accounts. Balances for the accounts are reported in the "within
one year" repricing category and comprise 30.8% of total interest-bearing liabilities. The rates paid on these accounts are
typically sensitive to changes in market interest rates only under certain conditions, such as market interest rates falling to
historically low levels. Management believes that the Company’s strong capital position is sufficient to protect against the
negative effects of interest rate changes on net income.

Simulation is used as a tool for measuring the interest rate risk inherent in the Company’s balance sheet at a given point
in time by showing the effect on net interest income of interest rate changes up 1o 200 basis points. The ALCO reviews
simulation results to determine the effect resulting from change in market interest rates. At December 31, 2004, netinterest
income simulation indicate that the Company’s exposure to changing interest rates is not significant and within acceptable
tolerance.




Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following table sets forth the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December
31, 2004, which are expected to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown. The amount of assets and
liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular period was determined in accordance with the contractual
terms of the asset or the liability, except as stated below. Loans that have adjustable interest rates are shown as being due
in the period during which the interest rates are next subject to change. No prepayment assumptions have been applied
to fixed-rate loans. Certificates of deposit are shown as being due in the period of maturity. Savings and transaction
accounts are shown as repricing within one year. The assumption that assets and liabilities will reprice or mature in
accordance with their contractual terms should not be considered indicative of the actual results that may be experienced
by the Bank.

Over
Within 1-3 35 5
1 Year Years Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning assets:

Loan receivable (1) $ 107,632 $ 11,498 $ 32,430 $ 12,259 $ 163,819

Securities available-for-sale 4,334 12,919 2,728 2,960 22,941

Cash investments 1,665 - - - 1,665
Total interest-earning assets 113,631 24417 35,158 15219 188,425
Interest bearing-liabilities:

Savings accounts (2) 26,872 - - - 26,872

Transaction accounts (2) 35,224 - - 1,150 36,384

Certificate accounts 60,657 21,609 11,996 27 94,289

Borrowings 14,494 - - 17,000 31,494

Subordinated debentures — - -~ 6,000 6,000
Total interest-bearing liabilities 137,257 21,609 11,996 24.177 195.039
Interest sensitivity gap per period $(23626) § 2808 $ 23,162 $ (8.,958) $ (6614)
Cumulative interiest sensitivity gap $(23.626) $(20818) $ 2344 $ (6,614) $ (6614)
Percentage of cumulative gap to total
assets (11.02)% 9.7)% 1.09% (3.08)% (3.08)%
Cumulative ratio of interest-sensitive
assets to interest-sensitive liabilities 82.79% 86.90% 101.37% 96.61% 96.61%

(1) Includes $739,000 in loans held for sale; such loans are reflected in the above table in the within 1 year category.

(2) Assumes that each savings and transaction account will be withdrawn in favor of an account with a more favorable
interest rate within one year. This assumption maximizes the amount of liabilities repricing during such period.
Normally, the rates paid on these accounts are not particularly sensitive to changes in market interest rates. 1f these
amounts were spread based on expected repricing characteristics, the cumulative gap would have been significantly
reduced. The noninterest-bearing checking accounts were included in the over 5 years category.




LENDING ACTIVITIES

Gengral

The Company’s loan portfolio is comprised primarily of first mortgage loans secured by one-to-four family residences and
commerctal property, a majority of which are adjustable rate. The Company originates loans on real estate located in its
primary lending arcas in Jetferson. Shelby, Bibb and Tuscaloosa Counties of Alabama, which include Bessemer, Petham,
Hueytown, Hoover, West Blocton, Centrevilie, Woodstock and Vance.

The Company has not purchased servicing rights. The Company routinely sells fixed rate loans in the secondary market
with servicing released. Mortgage servicing rights are capitalized based on relative fair value.

Residential Lending - One-10-Four Family

The Company offers various adjustable rate onc-to-four family residential loan products ("ARMs”). ARMs generally uic
subject to a limitation of 2% per annum adjustment for interest rate increases and decreases, with a lifetime cap of 8% on
increases. These limits, based on the initial rate, may teduce the interest rate sensitivity of such loans during periods of
changing interest rates. Interest rates and origination fees on ARMs are priced to provide a profit margin and not
necessarily to be competitive in the local market. One-to-four family residential ARMs do not provide for negative
amortization.

The Company generally makes one-to-four family residential mortgage loans in amounts not to exceed 85% of the appraised
value or sale price, whichever is less, of the property securing the loan, or up to 95% if the amount in excess of 85% of the
appraised value is secured by private mortgage insurance, and 80% to 85% with an increased interest rale. The Company
usually charges an origination fee of 1.00% on one-to-tour family residential mortgage loans. The Company’s foan policy
requires approval by a loan committee or the Board of Directors for loans over specified amounts. The Board of Directors
is furnished with an analysis of the respective monthly loan activity.

In addition to ARM lending. the Company may originate fixed rate one-to-four family residential loans. However, at this
time, all fixed rate loans are being sold into the secondary market, servicing released. Investor relationships have been
established with a major bank and mortgage companies. In addition, the Company is approved by the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) to sell and service loans. These
outlets allow more diversified products and enhance the ability to manage interest rate risk. The Company has these loans
underwritten by a contract underwriter or the purchaser making these fixed rate mortgage loans.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

Loans secured by commercial real estate totaled approximately $56.9 million, or 35.3% of the total loan portfolio, at
December 31, 2004. Commercial real estate loans are generally originated in amounts up to 80% of the appraised value
of the property. Such appraised value is determined by an independent appraiser previously approved by the Company.
Commercial real estate loans are permanent loans secured by improved property such as office buildings. retail stores,
warchouses. churches, hotels/motels, and other non-residential buildings. Of the commercial real estate loans outstanding
at December 31, 2004, most are located within 100 miles of the Company’s office locations and were made to local
customers. In addition, borrowers generally must personally guarantee loans secured by commercial real estate.
Commercial real estate loans generally have 10 to 20 year terms and are made at rates based upon market rates for the type
of property. Such loans amortize over the life of the loan. Commercial real estate loans arc usually made at adjustable
rates. Loans secured by commercial real estate propertics are generally larger and involve a greater degree of risk than
residential mortgage loans. Because payments on loans secured by commercial real estate properties are ofien dependent
on successtul operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject to a greater extent to
adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. The Company sccks to minimize these risks by lending to
established customers and generally restricting such loans to its primary market area.

Construction Lending

The Company has several construction loan programs. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $39.7 million in
construction loans or 24.6% of the loan portfolio. Such loans are primarily classified as one-to-four family residential loans
or commercial real estate loans depending upon the character of the property used as collateral. Of such amount. $9.7
million was undisbursed at December 31, 2004, and consisted primarily of loans to individuals for construction of
residential properties. The Company presently charges adjustable interest rates on construction and construction-permanent
loans. Construction and construction-permanent loans may be made for up to 80% of the anticipated value of the property
upon completion. Funds are disbursed based upon percentage of completion as verificd by an on-site inspection.




Consumer Lending

As a community-oriented lender, the Company offers certain secured and unsecured consumer loans, including primarily
loans secured by dcposits, automobile loans, mobile home loans, signature loans and other sccured and unsecured loans.
Consumer loans totaled $7.0 million or 4.3% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2004. Consumer loans, while
generally having higher yields than residential mortgage loans, involve a higher credit risk.

Home Equity Lending

Home cquity lines may be made not to exceed 90% of the first and second combined mortgage loan to value. These loans
are credit lincs with a maximum loan term of 10 years. The interest rate on these lines of credit adjusts monthly at a rate
based on prime. At December 31, 2004, the outstanding home equity loan balance was $8.5 million.

Commercial Lending

The Company originates commercial loans and commercial lines of credit. The commercial loans are based on serving
market needs while limiting risk to rcasonable standards and lending only to strong, well established businesscs in the
Company’s market areas. Commercial loans are adjustable rate loans or have short-term maturities (typically one year) and
are generally, secured by equipment, accounts receivable and inventory. Commercial loans (otaled approximately $7.9
million or 4.9% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2004.

Analysis of Loan Portfolio

The following table sets forth the composition of the Company’s mortgage and other loan portfolios in dollar amounts and
in percentages at the dates indicated. At December 31, 2004, the Company had no concentrations of loans exceeding 10%
of total loans that are not disclosed below.

As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans:

One-to-four family residential $ 52,207 $ 53,569 $ 47,903 $ 63,075 $ 635,061
Construction 39,731 27,277 24,542 9,846 13,874
Commercial real estate 56,986 41.854 17,415 18,529 15,876
Total mortgage loans 148924 122,700 89.860 91.450 94.811
Consumer loans:
Savings accounts 133 220 497 1,065 1,035
Other 6,855 7,563 7.674 10,462 12,939
Total consumer loans 6,988 7,563 8,171 11,527 13,974
Commercial loans 7.907 7.485 ___1.406 6.869 10,702
Total loans receivable 163,819 137,748 105,437 109,846 119,487
Less:
Allowance for loan losses 1,684 1,397 1,059 775 966
Net deferred loan iees 294 252 68 85 (15
1,978 1,649 1,127 860 951
Loans receivable, net $161,841 $136,099 5104310 $108.986 $118.536




Loan Maturity

The following table shows the maturity, without regard to repricing dates, of the loan portiolio at December 31,2004, based

upon contractual maturity. See page 6, “Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis”, for an analysis of loans based on expected
repricing or maturity.

December 31, 2004

One-to-Four
Family
Residential
and Commercial
Construction Real Estate Consumer Commercial
Loans Loans Loans Loans Total
(In thousands)
Amounts Due:
One year or less $ 34,356 $ 3.627 $ 1,744 $ 5,933 $ 45660
One year through 5 years 10,519 11,203 4,335 1,850 27.907
After 5 years 47.063 42,156 909 124 90.252
$91,938 $ 56,986 $ 6988 $ 7.907 163.819
Less:
Allowance for loan losses 1.684
Net deferred loan fees 294
Loans receivable, net $ 161841

Scheduied contractual principal repayments of loans do not necessarily reflect the actual life of such assets. The average
life of long-term loans is substantially less than their contractual terms, due to prepayments. The average life of mortgage
loans tends to increase when current mortgage loan market rates are substantially higher than ratcs on existing mortgage

loans and tends to decrease when current mortgage loan market rates are substantially lower than rates on existing mortgage
loans.

The following table sets forth at December 31, 2004, the dollar amount of loans duc after December 31, 2005, based upon

contractual maturity dates, and whether such loans have fixed interest rates for the life of the loan or adjustable interest
rates:

Due After December 31, 2005
Fixed Adjustable Total
(In thousands)

Mortgage Loans:

One-to-four family & Construction $ 19,435 $ 38,147 $ 57,582
Commercial real estate 4,170 49,189 53.359
Total mortgage loans 23.605 87,336 110,941
Consumer loans _ 5244 -- 5244
Commercial loans 1,783 191 1,974
Total loans receivable, gross $ 30632 $ 87,527 $118,159

Loan Origination, Commitment and Other Loan Fees

In addition to interest earned on loans, the Company charges fees for originating and making foan commitments (which
are included in interest income), prepayments of non-residential loans, late payments, changes in property ownership and
other miscellancous services. The income realized from such fees varies with the volume of loans made or repaid, and the
fees vary from time to time depending upon the supply of funds and other competitive conditions in the mortgage markets.
Loan demand and the availability of money also affect these conditions.

Loan Delinquencies, Nonperforming Assets and Classified Assets

Nonperforming assets include nonaccruing loans and real estate owned. The Company’s policy is to stop accruing interest
income when any loan is past due as to principal or interest in excess of 90 days and the ultimate collection of either is in
doubt. Foreclosed real estate occurs when a borrower ultimately does not abide by the original terms of the loan agreement
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and the Company obtains title of the real estate securing the loan in foreclosure proceedings. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had no restructured loans within the meaning of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement 1 14. The
following table is an analysis of the nonperforming assets and accruing loans 90 days or more past due at December 31,
2004. 2003 and 2002.

_2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans $ 286 $ 36 $ 198
Consumer loans 13 24 41
Commercial loans 33 229 180

Total non-performing loans 332 289 419
Real estate owned 986 4216 (1) 1,898

Total non-performing assets : $ 1,318 $ 4.505 - $2317
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due 21 162 236

Total non-performing assets and accruing

loans 90 days or more past due 1,339 $ 4,667 $2.553
Non-performing assets and accruing loans
90 days or more past due to total assets 0.62% 2.40% 1.44%
Non-performing loans to total loans, net 021% 0.21% 0.40%

(1) Subsequent to December 31, 2003, $2.5 million of the real estate owned was under lease with a purchase option.

At December 31, 2004, there were no loans included in the above table considered potential problem loans that
management expects will significantly impact future operating results, liquidity or capital resources or for which
management is aware of any information that causes management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers
to comply with the loan repayment terms. Interest income recognized on nonaccrual loans outstanding at December 31,
2004, would have increased by approximately $11,000, had interest income been recorded under the original terms of the
loan. Interest income on non-performing loans included in interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004, was
approximately $14,000. The Company had $52,000, $145,000 and $27,000 of specific allowance related to the non-
performing loans at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Confirmed losses on loans are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Additions to this allowance are made by recoveries
of loans previously charged off, as losses occur, and by provisions charged to expense. The determination of the balance
of the allowance for loan losses is based on an analysis of the composition of the loan portfolio, current economic
conditions, past loss histories and other factors that warrant recognition in providing for an adequate allowance. Losses
ultimately confirmed will vary from original estimates, and adjustments, as necessary, are made in the period in which these
factors and other relevant considerations become known.

The following table sets forth information regarding the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 1,397 $ 1059 $ 775 $ 966 § 1,038
Provision for loan losses 684 1,141 1,956 96 135
Charge-offs:
Mortgage loans 190 578 389 137 82
Consumer loans 270 223 259 120 169
Commercial loans 10 81 1,078 76 -
Total Charge-offs 470 882 1,726 333 251
Recoveries:
Mortgage loans 24 34 15 25 5
Consumer loans 49 44 39 16 39
Commercial loans - 1 - 35 -
Total Recoveries 73 79 54 46 44
Charge-offs, net of recoveries 397 803 1,672 287 207
Balance at end of period $ 1684 $ 1,397 $ 1059 $ 775 $§ 966

Ratio of allowance for Joan losses to total
loans receivable at the end of period 1.04% 1.03% 1.02% 1% 82%

Ratio of allowance for loan losses to
non-performing loans (1) 507.23%  483.39% 252.74% 34.29% 35.87%

Ratio of net charge-offs during the period
to average loans outstanding during
the period 0.26% 0.65% 1.57% 26% 18%

(1) Non-performing loans are comprised of nonaccrual loans. Specific reviews are performed to determine the
collectibility and related allowance for loan losses on nonperforming loans.

The following table details the approximate allocation of the allowance for loan losses by category as of December 31,
2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000. See further discussion regarding the allowance for loan losses in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis™ in the Annual Report.

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount T Amounl %o
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans $1.187 705% $ 827 590% $ 212 200% $ 426 55.0% $ S17  S53.5%

Consumer loans 198 11.8 320 230 317 300 194 250 247 25.6
Commercial loans 299 177 250 _18.0 530 _50.0 155 _20.0 202 209
Total $1.684 100.0% $1,397 100.0% $1,059 100.0% $ 775 100.0% $ 966 100.0%

Classified Assets

Regulations provide for the classification of loans and other assets such as debt and equity sccuritics considered to be of
lesser quality as "substandard”, "doubtful" or "loss" assets. Assets which do not currently expose the insured institution
to asufficient degree of risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories, but possess credit deficiencics

or potential weaknesses, are required to be designated "special mention" by management.

When an insured institution classifies problem assets as either substandard or doubtful, it is required to cstablish
allowances for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by management. When an insured institution classifics problem
assets as "loss”, it is required either to establish a specific allowance for losses cqual to 100% of the amount of the asset
so classified or to charge-off such amount. An institution's determination as to the classification of its assets and the
amount of its valuation allowances is subject to review by its various regulators, which can order the cstablishment of
additional general or specific loss allowances. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $30.000 asscts classificd as loss,
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$129,000 of assets classified as doubtful, $4.3 million of assets classified as substandard, and $1.4 million in assets
designated as special mention. Total adversely classified assets (defined as those assels classified as substandard, doubtful
and loss) represeénted 2.1% of total assets at December 31, 2004. At that date, primarily all of the classified assets were
one-to-four family residences and commercial mortgage loans in the Company’s market areas.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company had investments in mortgage-backed securities in the portfolio which are currently insured or guaranteed
by the FNMA, GNMA or the FHLMC and have coupon rates as of December 31, 2004, ranging from 3.12% to 9.50%.
At December 31, 2004, mortgage-backed sccurities totaled $1.0 million or 0.5% of total assets.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had 12.03% of total assets in cash, cash equivalents, mortgage-backed securities and
investment securities maturing in five years or less. The Company holds cash equivalents in the form of amounts due from
depository institutions, overnight interest-bearing deposits in banks, and federal funds sold, the latter being generally sold
for one day periods.

The Board of Directors sets the investment policy. This policy dictates that investments will be made based on the
following criteria: liquidity requirements, return on investment, and acceptable levels of interest rate risk and credit risk.
The policy authorizes investment in various types of liquid assets permissible under applicable regulations, which include
United States Government obligations, securities of various federal or federally-sponsored agency obligations, certain
municipal obligations, certain corporate bonds, certain certificates of deposit of Board-approved banks and savings
institutions and federal funds sold. The policy is to account for the investments as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale
based on intent and ability.

DEPOSITS, BORROWINGS AND OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS
General

The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits and borrowings and principal, interest and dividend payments on
loans, mortgage-backed securities and investments, as applicable.

Deposits

The Company offers a variety of deposit accounts having a range of interest rates and terms. Deposits consist of savings
accounts, checking accounts, money market deposits, [RA and certificate accounts. The Company currently hasseven ATM
machines and issues ATM/Debit cards on checking accounts. Compound interest is paid on most deposits. The flow of
deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in money markets and prevailing interest rates
and competition. Deposits are obtained primarily from the areas in which the branches are located. The Company also
maintains collateralized deposits in excess of $100,000 held by the State of Alabama and certain other depositors.
Generally, deposit rates are priced relative to existing treasury market rates. The Company relies primarily on customers
as their source to attract and retain these deposits. The Company has no brokered deposits as of December 31, 2004.

Average Balance and Average Rate of Deposits

The average balance of deposits and average rates are summarized for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
in the following table.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Amount Rate Amount  Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest bearing demand deposits $16,830 027% $14958 031% $17,172  0.44%
Nen-interest bearing demand deposits 19,853  0.00 19,188  0.00 13,670 0.00
Savings deposits 26,507 051 25,164  0.62 23457 0.98
Time deposits 92,295 3.0l 87,727 3.35 90,795 4.09

Large Certilicates of Deposit

The following table indicates the amount of the Banks' certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more by time remaining until
maturity as of December 31, 2004.
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Maturity Period Amount
(In thousands)

Three months or less $ 2837
Over three through six months 4,725
Over six through 12 months 5,150
Over 12 months 12,544

Total $ 25256

Borrowings/FHLB Advances

Deposits are the Company’s primary source of funds. The Company’s policy has been to utilize borrowings only when
necessary and when they are a less costly source of funds or can be invested at a positive rate of return. The Company may
obtain advances from the FHLB-Atlanta upon the security of its capital stock of the FHLB-Atlanta and certain of 5
mortgage loans. Such advances may be made pursuant to several different credit programs, cach of which has its own
interest rate and range of maturities. The maximum amount that the FHLB-Atlanta advances to a member institution
generally is reduced by borrowings from any other source. In addition, the Company has borrowing abilities from various
correspondent banks.

At December 31, 2004, there were $17 million in FHLB advances. The advances are at a (ixed rate of 5.20% and have a
contractual maturity of January 12, 2011. On January 12, 2006, the FHLB has the option to convert the whole advance
to a three month floating LIBOR, at which time the Company may terminate the advance.

At December 31, 2004, there were $14.5 million in FHLB overnight borrowings. The borrowings are at an adjustable rate
with a rate of 2.44% at December 31, 2004.

The Company has a line of credit for $2,500,000, with an outstanding balance of $0 at December 31, 2004. The line of
credit is at a variable rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus 2.80% and has a maturity date of
February 20, 2005.

In June 2004, the Company raised $6.0 million through the issuance of Floating Rate Capital Securities by FirstFed
Statutory Trust I, a newly formed special purpose Delaware statutory trust. The securities qualify as Tier [ Capital for
regulatory purposes and bear an interest rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 2.63%. The securities arc redcemable in
whole or part after five years, or earlier under certain circumstances.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table indicates the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004:

Term

Less Than
Total | Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5+ Years

(In thousands)
FHLB Advances $ 17,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 17,000
Subordinated Debentures 6.000 - - - 6,000
Time Deposits 94,289 60,657 21,609 11,996 27
Total $117.289 $ 60657 $ 21.609 $ 11996 $ 23.027

The Company has no capital lease obligations and the operating lease obligations are not material.

COMPETITION

The Company faces strong competition both in making loans and in attracting deposits. A large number of financial
institutions, including commercial banks, savings associations, credit unions, and other nonbank financial companies,
compete in the greater Birmingham, Alabama, metropolitan area, in which the primary service areas of the Company are
located. Most of these companies are competitors of the Company to varying degrees. The Company also competes with
many larger banks and other financial institutions that have offices over a wide geographic arca.

REGULATION, SUPERVISION AND GOVERNMENTAL POLICY
General

The Company is abank holding company that has elected to be a financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Actof 1999 (the “GLB Act”). As a financial holding company, the Company is subject to FRB regulation and supervision
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under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the "BHC Act™). The Company also is required to file certain
reports with, and otherwise comply with the rules and regulations of, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™)
under the federal securities laws including the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™).

First Financial Bank, as an Alabama commercial bank that is not a member of the Federal Reserve System, is subject to
regulation, supervision and regular examination both by the Banking Department and by the FDIC. The deposits of the
Company are insured by the FDIC to the maximum extent provided by law (a maximum of $100,000 for each insured
depositor). Federal and Alabama banking laws and regulations control, among other things, the Company’s required
reserves. investinents, loans, mergers and consolidations, issuance of securities, payment of dividends and other aspects
of the Company’s operations.

Supervision, regulation and examination by the bank regulatory agencies are intended primarily for the protection of
depositors rather than for holders of the Company's stock or for the Company as the holder of the stock of First Financial
Bank. These regulators have adopted guidelines regarding the capital adequacy of institutions under their respective
jurisdictions, which require such institutions to maintain specified minimum ratios of capital to total assets and capital to
risk-weighted assets. See Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

First Financial Bank is prohibited from paying any dividends or other capital distributions if, after the distribution, it would
be undercapitalized under the applicable regulations. In addition, under Alabama Law, the approval of the Alabama
Superintendent of Banks is required if the total of all the dividends declared by First Financial Bank in any calendar year
excecds net income as defined for that year combined with its retained net income for the preceding two calendar years.
See Note 14 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 provides for sweeping changes with respect to corporate governance, accounting policies
and disclosure requirements for public companies. and also for their directors and officers. Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the SEC has adopted new financial reporting requirements and rules concerning corporate governance. A reporting
company’s chief executive and chief financial officers are required to certify certain financial and other information
included in the company’s quarterly and annual reports. The rules also require these officers to certify that they are
responsible for establishing, maintaining and regularly evaluating the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls
and procedures; that they have made certain disclosures to the auditors and to the audit committee of the board of directors
about the company’s controls and procedures; and that they have included information in their quarterly and annual filings
about their evaluation and whether there have been significant changes to the controls and procedures or other factors which
would significantly impact these controls subsequent to their evaluation. Certifications by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chieff Financial Officer of the financial statements and other information have been filed as exhibits to this
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB. See Item 8A (“Controls and Procedures™) hereof for the Company’s evaluation of
disclosure controls and procedures. The certifications required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act have also been
tiled as exhibits to this Form 10-KSB. The Company has adopted a plan for compliance with the requirements of Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and rules promulgated thereunder.

USA Patriot Act

The USA Patriot Act authorizes regulatory powers to combat international terrorism. The provisions that affect financial
institutions most directly provide the federal government with enhanced authority to identify, deter, and punish international
money laundering and other crimes.

Among other things, the USA Patriot Act prohibits financial institutions from doing business with foreign “shell” banks
and requires increased due diligence for private banking transactions and correspondent accounts for foreign banks. In
addition, financial institutions have to follow new minimum verification of identity standards for all new accounts and are
permitted to share information with law enforcement authorities under circumstances that were not previously permitted.

Financial Modernization Act

The GLB Act significantly changed the regulatory structure and oversight of the financial services industry and expanded
financial affiliation opportunities for bank holding companies. Among other changes, the GLB Act permits “financial
holding companies” to engage in arange of activities that are “financial in nature” or “incidental” thereto, such as banking,
insurance, securities activities, and merchant banking. To qualify to engage in expanded financial activities, a financial
holding company must make certain required regulatory filings, and subsidiary depository institutions must be well-
capitalized, well-managed and rated “'satisfactory” or better under the Community Reinvestment Act. The Company meets
these requirements and has become a financial holding company.

The GLB Act prohibits financial institutions from sharing non-public financial information on their customers to non-

affiliated third parties unless the customer is provided the opportunity to opt-out or the customer consents. However, the
GLB Act allows a financial institution to disclose confidential information to non-affiliated third parties pursuant to a joint
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marketing agreement (after full disclosure to the customer), (o perform scrvices on hehall of the institution, to market the
institution’s own products, and to protect against fraud. The federal banking agencies have issued regulations implementing
privacy provisions ol the GLB Act.

Effects of Governmental Policy

The carnings and business of the Company are affected by the policics of various regulatory authorities of the United States,
particularly the FRB. Important functions of the FRB, in addition to those enumerated above, include the regulation of
the supply of money in light of general economic conditions within the United States. The instruments of monctary policy
employed by the FRB for these purposes influence in various ways the overall level of investments, loans, other extensions
of credit and deposits. and the interest rates paid on liabilitics and received on interest-carning assets. The nature and
timing of any future changes in the regulatory policies of the FRB and other federal agencies and their impact on the
Company are not predictable.

TAXATION
Federal Taxation

The following discussion of tax matters is intended only as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive
description of the tax rules applicable to the Company. For federal income tax purposes. the Company reported its income
and expenses on the accrual method of accounting under SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" and files its
federal income tax returns on a consolidated basis. For its taxable year ended December 31, 2003, the Company was
subject to a maximum federal income tax rate of 34%. The Company has not been audited by the Internal Revenue Service
for any recent year subject to audit. See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related Lo
income taxces.

Cormporate Alternative Minimum Tax

The Company is subject to taxes based on alternative minimum taxable income ("AMTI") at a 20% tax rate. AMTI is
increased by an amount equal to 75% of the amount by which a corporation's adjusted current carnings excecds its AMTH
(determined without regard to this preference and prior to reduction for net operating losses).

State and Local Taxation

The State of Alabama imposes a 6.5% excise tax on the earnings of financial institutions such as First Financial Bank. The
6.5% excise tax also applies to the Company. In addition to the excise taxes. the State of Alabama imposes an annual state
privilege tax for domestic and foreign corporations. The privilege tax is assesscd on corporations doing business in the
State of Alabama and is applied to each taxpayer's capital employed in the State of Alabama. Each corporation's investment
in the capital of a taxpayer doing business in Alabama is excluded from the taxable base. The Company is subject Lo the
Delaware franchise tax.

PERSONNEL

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had 85 full-time employees and 1 part-time employces. The employeces are not
represented by a collective bargaining unit, and the Company considers its relationship with the employees to be good.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

First Financial Bank conducts its business through its main office located in Bessemer, Alabama, and scven branch offices
located in Centreville, Hoover, Hueytown, Pelham, Vance, West Blocton and Woodstock. Alabama. The Company
believes that the current facilities are adequate to meet its present and immediately foresceable needs. The following table
sets forth information relating to each of the offices as of December 3 1. 2004, which totaled a net book value 0f $7.377.000.
See also Notes 1 and 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Leased

Or Date Net Book Value at
Owned Opened December 31, 2004
(In thousands)

Main Office -

1630 Fourth Avenue, No. Owned 1961 $839 (1)

Bessemer, Alabama 35020
Branches -

125 Birmingham Rd Owned 1979 53(1)

Centreville, Alabama 35042

1604 Montgomery Hwy.

Hoover, Alabama 35216 Owned 1992 454 (1)
1351 Hueytown Road
Hueytown, Alabama 35023 Owned 1966 866 (1)
3304 Pclham Parkway
Pcliham, Alabama 35124 Owned 2004 1,368 (1)
18704 Highway 11, North
Vance, Alabama 35490 Owned 1997 390 (1)
Main Street Owned 1965 259 ()
West Blocton, Alabama 35184
Highway 5 Owned 1985 121 (1)
Woodstock, Alabama 35188

Other fixed assets, net 3.027
Total 7,377

(1) Includes land, building and improvements.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:

From time to time. the Company is a party to routine legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business. At
December 31, 2004, there were no legal proceedings to which the Company was a party, or to which any of its property
was subject. which were expected by management to result in a material loss.

For a further discussion of legal matters, see notes to consolidated financial statements (beginning on page A-1).

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS:

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2004.
PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR_COMMON _ EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL
BUSINESS ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES:

The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ SmallCap Stock Market under the symbol! “FFDB”. As
of December 31, 2004, there were 2,401,007 shares of common stock outstanding and approximately 372 holders of record
ol the common stock. The following table sets forth the stock market price ranges of the common stock as reported on
NASDAQ SmallCap Market and cash dividends declared per share of common stock for the calendar quarters as indicated.
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Cash

Stock Market Dividends
Price Range Declared
Low High Per Sharc
Year Ended December 31, 2003:
First Quarter $ e6.10 $ 7.69 $ .14
Second Quarter 6.28 7.78 07
Third Quarter 7.25 8.12 .07
Fourth Quarter 8.00 9.21 .07
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter $ 831 $ 9.69 $ .14
Second Quarter 7.50 9.74 .07
Third Quarter 7.30 8.75 .07
Fourth Quarter 7.00 8.00 07

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION:

The following discussion and analysis is intended (o assist readers in understanding the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. This review should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements, accompanying footnotes and supplemental financial data included herein.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company’s net income for 2004 totaled $765,000, or $.32 per share on a diluted basis. This was an §89.8%
increase over $403,000, or the $.17 per share, earned for 2003. The key components of the Company’s financial condition
and earnings performance for 2004, compared with 2003, are summarized below.

»  Total loans increased by $25.7 million, or 18.9%. This growth in the loan portfolio is the result of increased emphasis
on commercial mortgage lending.

*  Netinterest income increased 13.9%. The net interest spread increased to 3.14% in 2004 from 2.89% in 2003.

»  The provision for loan losses declined $457,000, or 40.1%. The total nonperforming loans remained at a low level
of $332,000, or 0.2% of loans receivable at December 31, 2004, compared to $289.000, or 0.2% of loans receivable
at December 31, 2003.

*  Deposit-related fee income increased $796,000, or 54.6%, primarily due to the implementation of an Overdraft
Privilege Program.

*  Other operating expense increased $778,000, or 55.6%, primarily due to real estate owned expense of $552,000 in
2004, compared to $187,000 in 2003.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies involving significant judgements and assumptions by management, which have, or could have,
a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or net income, are considered critical accounting policies. The
Company considers the allowance for loan losses to be its critical accounting policy.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s allowance for [oan losses is determined quarterly in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 5, Accounting for Contingencies, and SFAS 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impair-
ment of a Loan, as amended. The allowance is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as a contra-
account to loans thereby slating loans at an estimated realizable value. The allowance is recorded by the provision for loan
losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income when [osses are estimated to have occurred. The foan losses are than
charged against the allowance when the loan is determined uncollectible. Any recoveries are credited to the allowance.

The aliowance for loan losses is maintained at levels which management considers adequate to absorb losses currently
in the loan portfolio at each reporting date. Management’s estimation of this amount includes a review of all loans for
which full collectibility is not reasonably assured and considers, among other factors, prior years’ loss experience, cconomic
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conditions, distribution of portfolio loans by risk class, the estimated value of underlying collateral, and the balance of any
impaired loans. Though management believes the allowance for loan losses to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from
estimations; however, the allowance is reviewed periodically and as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
earnings in the periods in which they become known.

Each quarter a Watch List Report is prepared. Watch List loans are comprised of non-performing loans and other
loans that have lbeen graded by internal loan review as a Watch List loan. These loans are specifically reviewed for
impairment and an allowance established as needed. Specific allowances for impaired loans are based on comparisons of
the carrying values of the loans to the present value of the loans’ estimated cash flows at each loan’s original effective
interest rate, the fair value of the collateral, or the loans’ observable market prices. All remaining loans are considered non-
watch list loans. The allowance needed for non-waich list loans is determined by applying a loss factor based on the most
recent twelve quarter average loss experience by loan portfolio type. The calculation of allowance methodology and
assumptions used are continually reviewed and adjusted accordingly if factors change.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity refers to the ability of the Company to meet its cash flow requirements in the normal course of business,
including loan commitments, deposit withdrawals, liability maturities and ensuring that the Company is in a position to
take advantage of investment opportunities in a timely and cost-efficient manner. Management monitors the Company’s
liquidity position and reports to the Board of Directors monthly. The Company may achieve its desired liquidity objectives
through management of assets and liabilities and through funds provided by operations. Funds invested in short-term
marketable instruments, the continuous maturing of other interest-earning assets, the possible sale of available-for-sale
securities and the ability to securitize certain types of loans provide sources of liquidity from an asset perspective. The
liability base provides sources of liquidity through deposits.

Traditionally, the Bank's principal sources of funds have been deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and
proceeds from interest on investments and maturities of investments. If needed, sources of additional liquidity include
borrowing abilities from the FHLB-Atlanta and correspondent banks.

COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003,
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2004 AND 2003

Changes in Financial Condition

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $2.8 million, or 37.1%, to $4.8 million at December 31, 2004, compared to $7.6
million at December 31, 2003. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was primarily the result of the use of cash to fund
an increase in portfolio loan originations.

Securities available-for-sale decreased slightly to $22.9 million at December 31, 2004. The decrcase was the result
of maturities and calls totaling $9.0 million and sales of $3.0 million offset by securities purchased of $7.1 million. There
was also a decrease in fair value.

Loans receivable, net, at December 31, 2004, were $161.8 million, an increase of $25.7 million, or 18.9%, from
$136.1 million at December 31, 2003. The increase in loans receivable, net, was substantially due to the increased
empbhasis on portfolio originations of adjustable-rate commercial mortgage loans.

The Company’s consolidated allowance for loan losses increased to $1.7 million at December 31, 2004, from $1.4
million at December 31, 2003. This increase of $300,000 was primarily due to a provision of $700,000, less charge-offs
over recoveries of $400,000, to maintain the allowance at a level believed appropriate to cover losses inherent in the
portfolio. Nonperforming loans, which includes nonaccruing loans, at December 31, 2004, increased slightly to $332,000,
or 0.2% of loans teceivable, from $289,000, or 0.2% of loans receivable at December 31, 2003.

Land, building, and equipment, net, increased $2.5 million, or 50.3%, to $7.4 million at December 31, 2004. The
increase is partially the result of a new and expanded Pelham branch needed as a result of growth at that location. The
previous Petham facility under lease expired in May 2004. The increase is also attributable to the purchase of land in
Calera, Alabama, for a new branch location.

Real estate owned was $1.0 million at December 31, 2004, a decrease of $3.2 million from December 31, 2003. The
decrease is primarily the result of three commercial foreclosures of one borrower which are now under lease with onc year
pvrchase options and recorded in other assets. Real estate owned is recorded at the lower of cost or the fair value less
estimated cost to dispose.

Other assets increased $4,481,000, or 171.1%, to $7,100,000 as of December 2004, primarily because of the addition
of $3.2 million of property under lease as discussed above. Included in other assets are $1,802.000 of restricted Federal
Home Loan Bank Stock and $350,000 of stock in First National Banker’s Bank.

The Company owns Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”) on certain key officers. The life insurance policies can
be used to provide funding for liabilities associated with certain existing employee benefits. Income of $359,000 carned
on the policies offset, to some extent, benefit expenses. Increases of $359,000 in the cash surrender value of the policics
are recorded as a component of noninterest income.

Total deposits increased $6.4 million to $157.5 million at December 31, 2004, compared to $151.1 million at
December 31, 2003. The growth was primarily in the Bank’s certificate of deposit accounts.
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Borrowings increased $7.7 million 10 $31.5 million at December 31, 2004. The increase was substantially the result
of overnight borrowings to tund loan demand.

Subordinated debentures of $6.0 million were recorded dunng lhc qu.mcr cnded June 10 ’7004 The. Company
established FirstFed Statutory Trust | (Trust™), a wholly-owned Delaware statutory business trust. The Company is the
sole sponsor of the Trust and acquired the Trust's common sccurities. The Trust was created for the exclusive purposc of
issuing 30-year Floating Rate Capital Securitics (“Trust Preferred Sceurities™) in the amount of $6,000,000 and using
proceeds to purchase junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company.. The securities quality as Ticr | Capital for
regulatory purposes-and bear an interest rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 2 6’.‘/( Thc progccds (rom the offering are
being used to fund internal and external growth.

Stockholders™ equity decrcased $134,000 to $18.4 million at December 31, 7004 The net dcnrcasc in equity during
the year ended December 31, 2004, was primarily attributable to dividends declared of $836,000, or $.35 per share and a
decrease in (air value of investments. This was partially offset by carnings of $765.000 and stock totaling $142.000 issued
under the Dividend Rcmvcslmuni Pl.m and upon the exercise of stock options. - .

General Results of Opemrwns

Net income for the year ended Ducmhcr 31, 2004, was $765 000, an increase of $">67 000 from lhc prior year’s
amount of $403.000. The increase was the result of several components including an increase in net interest income related
to growth and an increase in interest rate spread. Also contributing to the increase was a decrcase in the provision for loan
losses and increase in noninterest income, offset by an increase in noninterest expense.

Interest Income

Total interest income increased to $9.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $9.0 million for the year
ended December 31. 2003, This increase was primarily the result of an increase in the average yield on interest earning
assets to 5.4% during the year ended December 31, 2004, trom 5.3% for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Interest on loans increased $1.2 million to $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $7.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003, The average balance ol loans between years increased as a vesult of portfolio
originations. There was a decrease in the average yicld on 1oans to 5.7% for the year ended December 31,2004, from 6.1%
for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Interest carned on securities decreased $211.000 to $1.1 million for the year ended December ?l 7004 from$1.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, The decrease was primarily the result of a reduction in the average yicld
on investments to 4.4% for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to 4.9% for the year ended December ’»l 200?
plus a decrease in the average balance on investments.

Interest on federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits decreased $146.000 to $13.000 for the ycar cndcd
December 31, 2004, from $159.000 for the year ended December 31, 2003. This decrease was primarily attributable to
a decrease in average yield to 0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 0.8% for the year ended December 31,
2003, in addition to a decrease in the average balance of federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $4.2 million compared to $4.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Interest expensc on borrowings increased substantially as a result of increased overnight
borrowings plus the issuance of Trust Preferred securitics. On the other hand. interest expense on deposits for the year
ended December 31, 2004, was $3.0 million comparcd to $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This
decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in the average rate paid on deposits to 1.9%. from.2.{ % for the ycar ended
December 31, 2003. The average balance of deposits increased between fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004, mcreascd approxnnaxcly $700.000. 10 $5.7 mllhon from
$5.0 million for the previous year. This increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the net interest spread to- 3. 1%
trom 2.9% in the prior period.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is a function of the evaluation of the allowance for loan losses. Management increascd
the Company’s total allowance for loan loss by a provision of approximately $700.000 during the year ended December
31,2004. compared to $1.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2003. The Company’s allowance for loan losscs
is based on management’s evaluation of losses inherent in the loan portfolio and considers, among other factors, prior years’
loss experience, economic Condmons dlSll’lbUllOﬂ of porlloho loans by risk class and the ¢stimated value of undcxlymg.
collateral,

The Bank segregates its loan porltoho into problem and non-problem 1oans The Bank then determines the allowance
for loan losses based on specific review-of all prablem loans by internal loan review commitices. This detailed analysis
primarily determines the allowance on problem loans by specific evaluation of collateral fair value. The allowance for non-
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problem loans considers historical fosses and other relevant factors. The allowances are reviewed throughout the year to
consider changes in the loan portfolio and classification of loans which results in a sclf-correcting mechanism.

Noninterest {ncome

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2004, totaled $2.9 million as compared to $2.3 million for the
year ended Degember 31, 2003. The increase was substantially the result of increases in deposit-related fee income
associated withlthe implementation of .an Overdraft Privilege Program.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004, totaled $6.9 million, compared to $5.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Salaries and employee benefits increased $248,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004,
when comparedito the prior year. The increase was partially the result of an increase in incentive pay when compared to
the prior year and gencral increases in salarics and insurance. Office building and equipment expense for the year ended
December 31, 2004, increcased when compared to the prior year primarily as the result of the addition of the new Pelham
location. Expenses related to real cstate owned increased to $552,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to $187,000 recorded in the prior year. These costs were in a large part associated with completion of construction loan
propertics. Such properties are now under lease with a purchase option.

Income Taxes

Federal and state income tax increased $239,000, to $225,000 in the year ended December 31, 2004, from a benefit
of $14.000 for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was primarily the result of the increased taxable net
income for the year ended December 31, 2004, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. The net income before
tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $990,000, but the taxable net income was reduced by BOLI tax-frec income
of $359,000 and other items.

COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002,
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2003 AND 2002

Chalfges in Financial Condition

During the third quarter ended September 30, 2003, the Bank acquired deposits and loans fromabranch in Centreville,
Alabama, from First Federal of the South. Approximately $8.3 million in deposits were assumed at a premium of 3%, or
$250,000. Total loans of approximately $5.6 million were purchased and approximately $2.5 million in cash was received.
The purchased branch was merged into the Bank’s existing Centreville branch enabling the Bank to maximize utilization
of the cxisting Centreville branch.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $17.8 million, or 70.1%, to $7.6 million at December 31, 2003, compared to
$25.4 million at December 31, 2002. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was primarily the result of an increase in
portfolio loan originations.

Sccurities available-for-sale increased slightly to $29.4 million at December 31, 2003. The increase was the result
of securities purchases of $13.6 million, offset by maturities and calls totaling $7.3 million and sales of $6.0 million. There
was also a slight decrease in fair value.

Loans receivable. net, at December 31, 2003, were $136.1 million, an increase of $31.8 million, or 30.5%, from
$104.3 million at December 31,2002, The increase in loans receivable, net, was substantially due to the increased portfolio
originations in connection with a new trcasury-based, adjustable-rate commercial mortgage program. The increase is also
attributable to $5.6 million in loans acquired in cannection with the branch purchase discussed above.

The Company’s consolidated allowance for loan losses increased to $1.4 million at December 31, 2003, from $1.1
million at December 31, 2002. This increase of $300,000 was primarily due to a provision of $1.1 million, less charge-offs
over recoverices ol $800,000. to maintain the allowance at a level believed appropriate to cover losses inherent in the
portfolio. Nonperforming loans, which represents nonaccruing loans, at December 31, 2003, decreased to $289,000, or
0.2% of loans reccivable, from $419,000, or 0.4% of loans receivable at December 31, 2002.

Land. building, and equipment, net, increased $643,000, or 15.1%, to $4.9 million at December 31, 2003. The
increase is primartly the result of construction in process on a new and expanded Pelham branch location. The new
building is nceded as a result of growth at that location. The current Pelham facility is under lease which expires in May
2004.

Rcal cstatc owned was $4.2 million at December 31, 2003, an increase of $2.3 million from December 31, 2002, as
a result of forcclosures, net of dispositions. The increase is primarily the result of three commercial foreclosures of one
borrower, totaling approximately $2.5 million, during the fourth quarter of 2003. Real estate owned is recorded at the lower
of cost or the fair value less estimated cost to dispose.

The Company owns Bank Owned Life Insurance (*BOLI”) on certain key officers. The life insurance policies can
be used 1o provide funding for liabilities associated with certain existing emplayee benefits. Income of $368,000 earned
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on the policies offset, to some extent, benefit expenses. - Incrcases of $368.000 in the cash surrender value of the policies
are recorded as a component of noninterest income.

Total deposits increased $11.2 million to $151.1 million at December 31 2003, compared to $139. ‘) million at
December 31, 2002. This increase was substantially the result of the purchasc of a branch in Centreville, Alabama. with
total deposits of $8.3. The remaining growth was primarily in the Bank’s deposit transaction accounts.

Borrowings increased $5.8 million to $23.8 million at December 31, 2003. The increase was substantially the result
of overnight borrowings to fund loan demand.

Stockholders’ equity decreased $256,000 to $18.6 million at December 31, 2003 Thc net decrease in equity during
the year ended December 31, 2003, was primarily attributable to dividends declared of $800.000, or $.35 per share. partially
offset by earnings of $403.000 and stock totaling $262,000 issucd under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan and upon the
exercise of stock options.

General Results of Operations

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003, was $403.000. an increasc of $202.000 from the prior year's
amount of $201,000. The increase was substantially the result of a decrease in the provision for loan losscs. oflset by a
"decrease in net interest income primarily related to a decrease in the interest rate spread.

Interest Income

Total interest income decreased 1o $9.0 million for the year ended December 31,2003, from $10.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in the average yicld on interest carning
assets to 5.3% during the year ended December 31, 2003, from 6.4% for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Interest on loans decreased $956,000 to $7.5 million for the year ended December 31. 2003, from $8.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002. There was a decrease in the average yicld on loans (o 6.1 % for the year ended December
31.2003. from 7.9% for the year ended December 31, 2002. The average balance of loans between years increased as a
result of portfolio originations.

Interest earned on securities decrcased $543,000 to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $1.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease was primarily the result of a reduction in the average yicld
on investments to 4.9% for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to 5.8% for the year ended December 31, 2002
plus a decrease in the average balance on investments.

Interest on federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits decreased $161.000 to $159,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $320,000 for the year ended December 2002. This decrease was primarily attributable (o a
decrease in average yield to 0.8% for the year ended December 31, 2003, from 1.2% for the year ended December 31,2002,
in addition to a decrease in the average balance of federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits. The Company has
decreased the high amount of cash and cash equivalents during 2003 through increased loan originations.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, was $4.0 million compared to $4.9 million tor the year
ended December 31,2002. Interest expense on deposits for the year ended December 31,2003, was $3.1 million compared
to $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in the average
rate paid on deposits to 2.1 %, from 2.8% for the year ended December 31, 2002. The average balance of deposits incrcased
between fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002. Interest expense on borrowings increased as a result of the interest on a line of credit
which had an average balance outstanding during fiscal 2003 of $1.0 million, compared to $500,000 in fiscal 2002.-

Net Interest Income

Net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2003, decrcased approximately $800,000, to $5.0 miltion from
$5.8 million for the previous.year. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in the net interest spread to 2.9%
from 3:3% in the prior period.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is a function of the evaluation of the allowance for loan losses. Management increased
the Company’s total allowance for loan loss by a provision of $1.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $2.0 million during the ycar ended December 31, 2002. The Company’s allowance for loan losses is based
on management’s evaluation of losses inherent in the loan portfolio and considers, among other faclors, prior ycars® loss
expericnce, economic conditions, distribution of portfolio loans by risk ¢lass and the estimated valuc of underlying
collateral.

The Bank segregates its loan portfolio into problem and non-problem loans. The Bank then determines the allowance
for loan losses based on specific review of all problem loans by internal loan review committees. This detailed analysis
primarily determines the allowance on problem loans by specific evaluation or collateral fair value. The allowance lor non-
problem lodns considers historical losses and other relevant factors. The allowance are reviewed throughoult the ycar to
consider changes in the loan portfolio and classification of loans which results in a sclf-correcting mechanism.
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During 2002. the Company's primary subsidiary financial institution, a federal savings bank, was merged with and
into a separate subsidiary with a commercial state bank charter. In connection with the merger, the State Superintendent
required that Finst Financial change certain methodologies previously used to evaluate loan losses, which resulted in
additional loan loss provisions in order to maintain the allowance at a level believed appropriate to absorb losses inherent
in the portfolio. Also, loan charge-ofts were recorded which resulted in additional loan loss provisions. The Company
continually evaluates its credit risk and makes provisions for loan losses as deemed appropriate in the period incurred.

Nouninterest Income

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2003, totaled $2.3 million as compared to $2.2 million for the
ycar ended December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily the result of increases in fee income and fees from loans sold
in the sccondary market. There was also a slight increase in income due to increases in cash surrender value changes on
BOLIL

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense for the yearended December 31,2003, totaled $5.8 million, compared to $5.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Salaries and employee benefits increased $169,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003,
when compared to the prior year. The increase was substantially the result of an increase in incentive pay when compared
to the prior ycar. During 2002. the Company recorded a nonrecurring pension expense of $238,000, related to the payment
of a pension obligation. In accordance with FASB No. 88, a Settlement resulted in an accelerated expense charge caused
by the extremely low interest rates and pension plan performance being less than estimated. Office building and equipment
expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased slightly when compared to the prior year primarily as the result
of the addition of the new Hueytown location. Data processing expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased
slightly when compared to the prior year, substantially as a result of efficiencies in data processing resulting from the
merger of the subsidiary financial institutions. The decrease in other operating expenses resuited from merger-related
expenses of approximately $185,000 recorded in fiscal 2002.

Income Taxes

Federal and state income tax benefits decreased $87,000, to a benefit of $14,000 in the year ended December 31, 2003,
from a benelit of $101.000 for the year ended December 31,2002, The decrease in the benefit was primarily the result of
the increased taxable net income for the year ended December 31, 2003, as compared to the year ended December 31,
2002. The net income before tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, was $389,000, but the taxable net income was
reduced by BOLItax-free income of $368,000 and other items, which resulted in the recording of a tax benefit.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report, including Management's Discusston and Analysis, includes certain forward-looking statements addressing,
among other things, the Company’s prospects for earnings, asset growth and net interest margin. Forward-looking
statements are accompanied by, and identified with, such terms as “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,” "intends,” and
similar phrases. Management’s expectations for the Company's future necessarily involve a number of assumptions and
estimates. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from the expectations expressed herein are: substantial changes
in interest rates, changes in the general economy, and changes in the Company’s strategies for credit-risk management,
intcrest-rate risk management and investment activities. Accordingly, any forward-looking statements included herein do
not purport to be predictions of future events or circumstances and may not be realized.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The reports of independent registered public accounting firm and consolidated financial statements are included herein
(beginning on page A-1).

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE:

None.
ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES:

The Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management,
including the Company’s Chief Exccutive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2004, pursuant to Exchange
Act Rule 13a-15(h). Based upon that evaluation, the Company's Chiel’ Executive Officer and the Company's Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as designed and implemented. are
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effective in alerting them in a timely manner to material information relating to the Company (including its consolidated
subsidiaries) required to be included in the Company’s periodic SEC filings.

In addition, the company reviewed its internal controls. There has been no change in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting during the last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed by the
Company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that
such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Disclosure
controls include internal controls that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly
authorized, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use and transactions are properly recorded and
reported.

Any control system, no matter how well conceived and gperated, can provide only reasonable assurance that its objectives
are achieved. The design of a control system inherently has limitations, including the controls’ cost relative to their
benefits. Additionally, controls can be circumvented. No cost-effective control system can provide absolute assurance that
all control issues and instances of fraud, will be detected.

Effective as of December 31, 2005, the company will become subject to Section 404 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Section 404 requires management to assess and report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial
reporting.  Additionally, it requires the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm to report on
management’s assessment as well as report on its own assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls
over financial reporting. Management is currently establishing policies and procedures to assess and report on internal
controls, and will retain an outside firm to assist it in determining the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION:

Not applicable.
PART I
ITEM Y. DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF
THE EXCHANGE ACT:

The information contained under the section captioned "Proposal I--Election of Directors" in the Company's definitive
proxy statement for the Company's annual meeting of stockholders (the "Proxy Statement") is incorporated herein by
reference.

Information regarding Forms 3, 4 or § filers is incorporated by reference to the section in the Proxy Statements entitled
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all employees, including without exception, the principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer and/or controller, or persons performing similar
functions.

The Company has adopted a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter.
The Company has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which was amended in December, 2004.

The Code of Ethics, Audit Committee Charter and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter are not
currently available on the Company's website. The Code of Ethics was included as an exhibit to the Company’s annual
Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003. The Audit Committee Charter, as amended, is attached
as Appendix A to the Company’s definitive proxy statement in connection with the 2005 Annual Meeting. The Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee Charter was attached as Appendix B to the Company’s definitive proxy statement
dated March 22, 2004. :

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION:

The information contained in the sections in the Proxy Statement captioned "Proposal I--Election of Directors --Executive
Compensation and Other Benefits” and "--Directors' Compensation® in the Proxy Statement is incorporated hercin by
reference.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS:

(a) Equity Compensation Plans -

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section in the Proxy Statement captioned
“Equity Compensation Plans”,

(b)- Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners -

Information irequired by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section in the Proxy Statement captioned
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

(c) Security Ownership of Management -
Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections in the Proxy Statement captioned
"Proposal I-<Election of Directors" and "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the
Proxy Statement.

(d) Changés in Control -

Management of the Company is not aware of any arrangements, including any pledge by any person of securities of
the Company, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the Company.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS:

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned "Proposal 1--Election
of Directors -- Transactions with Management" in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS:

Exhibits-The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB and is also the

Oxhibit Index:

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (A)

3.2 Bylaws of FirstFed Bancorp.Inc. (A)

4.0  Stock Certificate of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (A)

10.01 First Federal Savings Bank Outside Directors’ Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement (C)

..10.02 First Federal Savings Bank Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement "B" (C)

10.03 FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan (C)

10.04 FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. 1991 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors as amended (C)

10.05 Form of Indemnification Agreement (B)

10.06 FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended (E)

10.07 FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended (D)

10.08 Employment Agreement dated January 1, 1996 by and between FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. and B. K.
Goodwin, III, as amended (D)

10.09 Employment Agreement dated January 1, 1996 by and between First Financial Bank (formerly First
Federal Savings Bank) and B. K. Goodwin, III, as amended (D)

10.10 Employment Agreement dated January 1, 1996 by and between FirstFed Bancorp, Inc., First Financial
Bank (formerly First Federal Savings Bank) and Lynn J. Joyce, as amended (D)

10.11 FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. 1995 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, as amended (D)

10.12  FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (F)

10.13 Placement Agreement dated as of June 7, 2004, among FirstFed Statutory Trust I, FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.
“and the placement agents. (H)

10.14 Indenture dated as of June 8, 2004, between FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. and Wilmington Trust Company (H)

11.0 - Statement of Computation of Earnings Per Share

14.0  FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. Code of Ethics (G)

21.0  Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith)

23.0 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (filed herewith)

31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

32.1  Section 1350 Certifications

A. Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Exhibits to the Form S-1 Registration
Statement, filed on July 3, 1991.
B. Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended March 31, 1993.
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Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended March 31, 1994.

Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the
year ended March 31, 1998.

Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for nine
months ended December 31, [998.

Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-
KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Incorporated herein by reference into this document from the Exhibits to the Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 8, 2004.

T o mmo o

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES:

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captured “Independent Auditors”
in the Proxy Statement.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.

Date: March 18, 2005 /s/ B. K. Goodwin, 111
B. K. Goodwin, III
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President

In accordance with the Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ B. K. Goodwin, 111 Chairman of the Board, Date: _ March 18, 2005
B. K. Goodwin, Iil Chief Executive Officer
and President

/s/ Lynn J. Joyce Chief Financial Officer, Date; _ March 18, 2005
Lynn J. Joyce Executive Vice President,

Secretary and Treasurer
/s/ Fred T. Blair Director Date: _March 18, 2005
Fred T. Blair
/s/ James B. Koikos Director Date: _March 18, 2005

James B. Koikos

/s/ E. H. Moore, Ji. Director Date: __March 18, 2005
E. H. Moore, Ir.
/s/ James E. Mulkin ' Director Date: _ March 18, 2005

James E. Mulkin

/s/ G. Larry Russell Director Date: _March @,\2005
G. Larry Russell
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EXHIBIT 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State of Percentage
Subsidiary Incorporation QOwnership
First State Corp. Alabama 100%
Subsidiary of First State
Corp.:
First Financial Bank Alabama 100%




EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (Nos. 333-40559 on Form S-3 and
33-51662,33-58260,33-81798,333-09065,333-61165and333-62018 onFormS-8)ofFirstFedBancorp,Inc.

of ourreportdated March 10,2005 withrespecttotheconsolidated statement of financial condition of FirstFed
Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years thenended, which reportappears

in the December 31, 2004, annual report on Form 10-KSB of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.

{s/ KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 15, 2005



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, B. K. Goodwin, III, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢))
for the small business issuer and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small
business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit
committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the smalil business issuer’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: _March 18, 2005 Byv: \s\ B. K. Goodwin, Il
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Lynn J. Joyce, certify that:
1. T'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; '

4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e))
for the small business issuer and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small
business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrals and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c)disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit
committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: _March 18, 2005 By:\s\ LynnJ. Joyce
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President,
Secretary and Treasurer




EXHIBIT 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the period ended
December 31, 2004 (the “Report”) of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, the undersigned, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby each certify that to
the best of our knowledge:

(hH the Report fully complies with the requireinents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as
of and for the periods covered in the Report.

\s\ B. K. Goodwin, III ‘ March 18, 2005
B. K. Goodwin, III, Chief Executive Officer Date
\s\ Lynn J. Joyce March 18, 2005
Lynn J. Joyce, Chief Financial Officer Date

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request. The information furnished herein shall not be deemed
to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, nor shall it be
deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements basedon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

KPMG LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 10, 2005
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: FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003

{Dollar amounts in thousands, except sharc amounts)

— 2004 —2003
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 3,125 $ 2952
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks ) 1,489 4,440
Federal funds sold 176 229
R 4,790 7.621
Securities available-for-sale 22,941 29.395
Loans held for sale 739 1,033
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses :
of $1,684 and $1,397, respectively 161,841 136,099
Land, buildings and equipment, net 7.377 4,908
Bank owned life insurance 6,368 6.009
Real estate owned 986 4216
Accrued interest receivable 1,134 1,095
Goodwill and other intangibles 1,167 1,216
Other assets 7,100 2,619
$ 214443 $ 194211
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 157,545 $ 151109
Borrowings 31,494 23,780
Subordinated debentures 6,000 -
Accrued interest payable 238 217
Dividend payable 168 166
Other liabilities 580 387
—196.025 —175.659
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares
authorized, none issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares
authorized, 3,230,955 issued and 2,401,007
outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 3,205,485

issued and 2,375,537 outstanding at December 31,

2003 32 32
Paid-in capital 8,590 8,426
Retained earnings 15,976 16,047
Deferred compensation obligation 2,114 1,969
Deferred compensation treasury stock (240,036 shares

at December 31, 2004 and 221,283 shares at

December 31, 2003) 2,114) (1.969)
Treasury stock, at cost (829,948 shares at Dccember 31,

2004 and 2003) (6,088) (6,088)
Unearned compensation (328) 416)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 236 _551

8418 18,552
$ 214443 194211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financia! statements.
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FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC, -

- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME |
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and tees on loans
Interest and dividends on securities
Taxable
Tax exempt
Other interest income
Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits
Interest on borrowings

Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provisian for loan losses Co
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NONINTEREST INCOME o
Service and other charges on deposit accounts
Gain on sale of investments
Bank owned life insurance
Other income  *

Total noninterest income

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits v
Office building and equipment expense
Data processing expense
Other operating expense
Total noninterest expense

Income before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
NET INCOME

AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
OUTSTANDING - BASIC
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
OUTSTANDING - DILUTED
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE

2004
$ 8,688

1,139
11
13

9.851

2,957

1,233
4,190

5,661
684

4977

2,253 ..

3
359
293

2912

3,400
889
433

2,177
6,899

1990
225

3 765

2,361,694

2,385,184

$ .35

2003

$ 7,473
1,350

23

159

9.005

3,137
900

4,037

4,968
1,141
3,827

1,457
299
368
215

2,339

3,152
805
421

1,399
3,777

389
4%
$ 403

2,314,055

2,355,219

$ .35

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

Deferred Accumulated
Deferred  Compen- Other
Compen- sation Unearned Compre- Compre-
Common Paid-1In Retained sation Treasury Treasury  Compen- hensive hensive
Stock, Capital Earnings  Obligation Stock Stock. sation fncome Income

ALANCE. December 31, 2002 3 32 5 BI159 % 16467 $ 1876 3 (1876) $ (6.088) & (518) 3 750
Net tncome . - 403 - - . . - S 403
Change in unrealized fair value

of securities available-
for-sale. net of tax of
($123) - - - - - - - (205) (205)

Comprehensive income - - - - - - - - § 198

Amortization of unearned
compensation - - - - - - 132 -

Awards under stock plans - 30 - - - - 30) -

Exercise of stock options - 146 - - - - -

Dividends declared ($.35
per share)

Change in stock value of -
Employee Stock
Ownership Plan - 25) - - - - - B

Purchase of Deferred

Compensation TreasuryStock - - - 116 (1106) - - -

Distribution of Deferred
Compensation Treasury Stock - -

Stock issued under Dividend
Reinvestment Plan - 116 - - - - . _

ALANCE, December 31, 2003 $ 32 % 8426 § 16047 5 1,969 § (19069 § (6.088) $ (410) $ 551
Net income - . 765 - R - - R
Change in unrealized fair value

of securities available-

for-sale, net of tax of

($169) - - - - - - - (315)
Comprehensive income - - - - - - R R
Amortization of unearned

'

f
—
oa
ro
(o8]
fusy

‘

)

0

'

'

f
—
[ ]
(O]
=

23 . ) ;

$ 765

450

5]
"
wn

compensation - - - - - - 114 .
Awards under stock plans - 26 - - - - (263 .
Exercise of stock options : - 20 - - - - - .
Dividends declared ($.35

per share) - - (830) - . R . .

Change in stock value of
Employee Stock
QOwnership Plan - (23) - - - - - -
Purchase of Deferred
Compensation TreasuryStock - - - 159 (159) - - -
Distribution of Deferred
Compensation Treasury Stock - -
Stock issued under Dividend
Reinvestment Plan - 135 - - - - - -
tALANCE, December 31, 2004 3 32 $ 8590 § 15976 $ 2114 S (2.014) S (0.088) S (328) $ 230

(14) 14 - - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

2004 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 765 ) 403
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 607 501
Provision (credit) for deferred income taxes (108) (179)
Provision for loan losses 684 1,141
Loan fees {cost) deferred, net 197 230
Gain on sale of investments Q) (299)
Gain on sale of fixed assets 8) -
Loss on sale of real estate, net 142 70
Origination of loans held for sale (11,558) (19,656)
Proceeds fiom the sale of loans held for sale 11,852 20,852
Provision for deferred compensation 159 116
Increase in'surrender value of Bank Owned Life Insurance (359) (368)
Decrease (increase) in operating assets, net of effects of purchase of branch in 2003:
Accrued interest receivable 39 247
Other assets ] (775) (473)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities, net of effects of purchase of branch in 2003:
Accrued interest payable 21 (15)
Other liabilities 301 (44)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1.874 2,526

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Cash acquired in purchase of branch, net - 2,458
Proceeds from maturities, calls and repayments of securities available-for-sale 8,968 7,269
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale 3,000 6,048
Purchase of securities available-for-sale (6,317) (13,229)
Proceeds from sale of real estate and repossessed assets 1,601 1,618
Net loan originations (24,186) (31,514)
Loans purchased (3,500) -
Capital expenditures (3.590) (963)
Net cash used in investing activities (24.024) (28,313)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in deposits, net 6,436 2,878
Repayment of borrowings (106,395) (5,250)
Proceeds from borrowings 114,109 11,025
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred securities 6,000 -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 26 146
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment 135 116
Cash dividends paid (833) (823)
Purchase of treasury stock for Deferred Compensation Plan (159) 116)
Net cash provided by financing activities 19319 7.976
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,831 (17.811)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7.621 25,432
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $_ 4790 $ 7621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

1. SUMMARY OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Organization and Basis of Presentation

FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company™) is the holding company and sole sharcholder of First State Corporation
(“FSC™). FSC is the sole shareholder of First Financial Bank (the “Bank™). There are no material assets in FSC except
for the investment in the Bank. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company.
the Bank and FSC. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of Operations

The Bank, through eight branch offices located in Alabama, is engaged in a full range of banking services. Thosc
services consist of providing various deposit opportunities o customers and originating [-4 family mortgage loans,
commercial real estate loans, commercial and installment loans. These services are provided in portions of the Birmingham
metropolitan areas and counties surrounding its south and west borders.

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenucs
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The primary estimate herein
is the allowance for loan losses.

Securities

The Company classifies securities as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity based on management’s intent at the
time of purchase and the Company’s ability to hold such securities to maturity.

Securities designated as available-for-sale are carried at fair value. The unrealized difference between amortized cost
and fair value of securities available-for-sale is excluded from earnings and is reported net of deferred taxes as a component
of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive income. This caption includes securities that management
intends to use as part of its asset/liability management strategy or that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates,
changes in prepayment risk, liquidity needs, or for other purposes. Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale
securities are determined using the specific identification method. :

Restricted stock consists primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock, a required stock holding, and is
carried at cost, as there is no readily available market for these shares and management believes fair value approximates
cost.

Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using a method that approximates the effective interest
method. , :

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value, as such loans are not intended to be held
to maturity. Asof December 31, 2004 and 2003, loans held for sale consisted of mortgage loans that have been committed
for sale to third-party investors.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances, net of the allowance for loan losses and dcferred loan
origination fees and costs. Interest is credited to income based upon the recorded investment.

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when a loan becomes 90 days past due and, in the opinion of
management, there is an indication that the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. Upon such
discontinuance, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed against current income unless the collateral for the loan is sufficient
to cover the unpaid principal and accrued interest. Interest received on nonaccrual loans generally is either applicd against
principal or reported as interest income, according to management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal.
Generally, loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current and the ultimate collectibility of the
total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt.
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Interest income recognized on nonaccrual loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, would have increased
by approximately $11,000 and $15,000, respectively, had interest income been recorded under the original terms of the
loan. Interest income on non-performing loans included in interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, was approximately $14,000 and $8,000, respectively.

Allewance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at levels which management considers adequate to absorb losses currently
in the loan portfolio at each reporting date. Management’s estimation of this amount includes a review of all loans for
which full collectibility is not reasonably assured and considers, among other factors, prior years’ loss experience, economic
conditions, distribution of portfolio loans by risk class, the estimated value of underlying collateral, and the balance of any
impaired loans (generally considered to be nonperforming loans, excluding residential mortgages and other homogeneous
loans). Though management believes the allowance for loan losses to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from
estimations; however, the allowance is reviewed periodically and as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
carnings in the periods in which they become known. Specific allowances for impaired loans are based on comparisons
of the carrying values of the loans to the present value of the loans’ estimated cash flows at each loan’s original effective
interest rate, the fair value of the collateral, or the loans’ observable market prices. The Company had $332,000 and
$289,000 of loans designated as impaired at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The average investment in
impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $413,000 and $794,000, respectively.

Loan Origination Fees and Related Costs

Nonrefundable fees associated with loan originations, net of direct costs associated with originating loans, are deferred
and amortized over the contractual lives of the loans or the repricing period for certain loans using the level yield method.
Such amortization is reflected in “Interest and fees on loans” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Loan commitment fees are recognized in income upon expiration of the commitment period, unless the commitment
results in the loan being funded.

Goodwill

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 141,Business Combinations, which requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business combinations after June 30, 2001, and SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which changed the
accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. Upon adoption of SFAS 142 on
January 1, 2002, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill. Based on the initial goodwill impairment test completed on
January 1, 2002, as required by SFAS 142, no goodwill impairment was indicated. In addition, the goodwill impairment
testing completed during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, indicated there was no goodwill impairment.
Therefore, the Company had no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill from December 31, 2003 to December 31,
2004.

Long-Lived Assets

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided at straight-line rates over the estimated service lives of the related property (15-50 years for buildings and
improvements and 3-10 years for furniture and equipment). Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations as incurred; expenditures for renewals and improvements are capitalized and written off through depreciation
and amortization charges. Equipment retired or sold is removed from the asset and related accumulated depreciation
accounts, and any profit or loss resulting therefrom is reflected in “other operating expense” in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate that such long-lived
assets have been impaired. Measurement of any impairment of such long-lived asseis is based on those assets’ fair values
and is recognized through a charge to the income statement. There were no significant impairment losses recorded during
either period reported herein.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company from time to time sells its originated loans into the secondary market. During 2002, the Company sold
approximately $10 million of mortgage loans to Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA™). For FNMA sales,
mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) are capitalized based on relative fair values of the mortgages and MSRs when the
mortgages are sold and the servicing is retatned.

For the valuation of MSRs, management obtains external information, evaluates overall portfolio characteristics and
monitors economic conditions to arrive at appropriate prepayment speeds and other assumptions. Impairment is recognized
for the amount by which MSRs exceed their fair value. The Company amortizes MSRs over the estimated lives of the
underlying loans in proportion to the resultant servicing income stream.
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Derivatives

The Bank uses derivatives to hedge interest rate exposures by mitigating the interest rate risk of mortgage loans held
for sale and mortgage loans in process. The Bank regularly enters into derivative financial instruments in the form of
forward contracts, as part of its normal asset/liability management strategies. The Bank’s obligations under forward
contracts consist of “best effort” commitments to deliver mortgage loans originated in the secondary market at a future date.
Interest rate lock commitments related to loans that are originated for later sale are classified as derivatives. In the normal
course of business, the Bank regularly extends these rate lock commitments to customers during the loan origination
process. The fair values of the Bank’s forward contracts and rate lock commitments to customers as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, were not material.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the total of net income and unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, net
of income taxes. Comprehensive income is displayed in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity. There were sales and calls of securities available-for-sale during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003;
however, the net realized gains/losses were not material.

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of presenting the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers cash on hand and in
banks, interest-bearing deposits in other banks and federal funds sold to be cash and cash equivalents.

2004 2003

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION: (In thousands)

Cash paid during the period for-

Income taxes $ 250 $ 271
Interest 4,169 4,052
Non-cash transactions-
Transfers of loans receivabie to real estate owned 1,268 4,552
Noncash compensation under stock plans 26 30
Noncash distribution of Deferred Compensation Stock (14) 23
Transfer of real estate owned to other assets 3,498 -
Acquisition of loans in branch purchase - 5,600
Acquisition of deposits in branch purchase - 8,300

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur
if securities or other contracts to issue common stock are exercised or converted into common stock. A reconciliation of
the numerator and denominator of the basic EPS computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS
computation is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Dilutive Dilutive
Effect of Effect of
Options Options
Basic Issued Diluted Basic Issued Diluted
Net income $ 765,000 - $ 765,000 $ 403,000 - $ 403,000
Shares available to
common stockholders 2,361,694 23490 2,385,184 2.314.055 41,164 2355219
Earnings Per Share $ 0.32 - $ 032 $ 0.17 - $ Q.17

Options to purchase 160,934 and 33,094 shares of common stock at prices in excess of the average market price were
outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, but not included in the computation of diluted EPS. There were
26,359 and 35,145 shares of common stock held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan and unallocated at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. These shares are outstanding but not included in the computation of earnings per share.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the Company has
elected to continue to apply APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans and,
accordingly, does not recognize compensation cost for options granted at market value. If the Company had elected to
recognize compensation cost for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, based on the fair
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value of the options granted at the grant date as required by SFAS No. 123, net income and eamings per share would have
been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands except share amounts):

2004 2003
Net income - as reported $ 765 $ 403
Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax (88) (96)
Net income - pro forma 677 $ 307
Earnings per share - as reported - basic 32 17
Eamnings per share - pro forma - basic 29 A3
Earnings per share - as reported - diluted 32 A7
Earnings per share - pro forma - diluted 28 13

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode! with
the following assumptions:

2004 2003
Expected dividend yield 4.25% 4.17%
Expected stock price volatility 31% 31%
Risk-free interest rate 3.63% 3.20%
Expected life of options 5 years 5 years

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

At the November 2003 meeting of FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Form (“EITF”), the EITF reached consensus on
EITF Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and lts Application to Certain Investments.” The
consensus requires new disclosure requirements for holders of debt or marketable equity securities that are accounted for
under SFAS 1185, “Accounting for Certain Investment in Debt and Equity Securities.” The new disclosure requirements
relate to temporarily impaired investments and are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003. The
requirements apply only to annual financial statements and comparative disclosures for prior periods are not required. The
guidance also dictates when impairment is deemed to exist, provides guidance on determining if impairment is other than
temporary, and directs how to calculate impairment loss. The Company adopted the EITF’s recommendations on December
31, 2003, and has provided additional disclosures regarding any possible other-than-temporary impaired investments.
Adoption of thes¢ recommendations did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or resuits of
operations.

In September 2004, the EITF issued EITF 03-1-1, “Effective Date of Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue 03-1, ‘The
Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application 1o Certain Investments’, which delays the effective
date of those paragraphs to be concurrent with the final issuance of EITF 03-1-a, “ Implementation Guidance for the
Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF 03-1, ‘The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to
Certain {nvestmerits’.” EIFT 03-1-a is currently being debated by the FASB in regards to final guidance and eftective date
with a comment period that ended October 29, 2004. EITF 03-1, as issued, was originally effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2004. The Company anticipates that the adoption of EITF 03-1-1 or EITF 03-1-a will not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123-R, “Share-Based Payment”, which establishes standards for the
accounting of transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses
transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the
entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. This Statement focuses
primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions.
This Statement does not change the accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees provided in SFAS 123 as originally issued and EITF96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued
10 Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.” SFAS 123-R is effective for
public entities that:file as small business issuers in 2006.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) issued Statement of Position
(“SOP”) 03-3, “ Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer.”” SOP 03-3 requires loans
acquired through a transfer, such as a business combination, where there are differences in expected cash flows and
contractual cash flows due to part to credit quality be recognized at their fair value. The yield that may be accreted is
limited to the excess of the investor’s estimate of undiscounted expected principal, interest and other cash flows over the
investor’s initial investment in the loan. The excess of contractual cash flows over expected cash flows is not to be
recognized as an adjustment of yield, loss accrual or valuation allowance. Valuation allowances can not be created nor
“carried over” in the initial accounting for loans acquired in a transfer of loans with evidence of deterioration of credit
quality since origination. However, valuation allowances for non-impaired loans acquired in a business combination can
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be carried over. This SOP is effective for loans acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004, with early
adoption encouraged. The Company does not believe the adoption of SOP 03-3 will have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN") 46-R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities-
Revised.” FIN46-R revises FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” which is an interpretation of Account-ing
Research Bulletin 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.” FIN 46-R provides guidance regarding the consolidation of
special purpose entities, and removed uncertainty over whether FIN 46 required consolidation or deconsolidation of special
purpose entities that issue trust preferred securities. FIN 46-R clarified that even those entities that issue trust preferred
securities with call options must be deconsolidated. FIN 46-R is effective for financial statements for periods ending after
December 15, 2003, with no requirement for restatement of previous periods. The Company adopted FIN 46-R on
December 31, 2004. Adoption of this Interpretation did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position
or results of operations.

Branch Purchase

During September 30, 2003, the Bank purchased all loans and assumed all deposits of a branch in Centreville,
Alabama from First Federal of the South. Approximately $8.3 million in deposits were assumed at a premium of 3%, or
$250,000. Total loans of approximately $5.6 million were purchased and approximately $2.5 million in cash was received.
This transaction enabled the Bank to expand and further utilize the existing Centreville branch.

2. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:

The amortized cost, approximate fair value and gross unrealized gains and losses of the Bank’s securities as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

2004 2003
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value Cost Gain (Loss) Value

(In thousands)

U. S. Government Agency

securities $ 6534 % - $ (103) $ 6431 $ 11,990 3§ 40 $ 9 $ 12,021
Corporate Bonds 14,815 462 a7n 15,260 15,014 821 (3D 15,804
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 200 7 - 207 200 12 - 212
Mortgage-backed securities 1,023 20 - 1,043 1,330 29 R6)) 1,358

§ 22572 § 489 $ (1200 § 22941 $ 28534 § 902 $§ (41) $29.395

There were no securities held-to-maturity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2004, by contractual
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers may have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Securities
Available-for-Sale
Amortized
Cost__ Fair Value
(In thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 4268 3 4333
Due after one year through five years 15,559 15,635
Due after five years through ten years - -
Due after ten years 1,722 1,930

21,549 21,898
Mortgage-backed securities 1.023 1,043

$ 22572 $22941

Securities available-for-sale totaling $6,431,000 and $7,507,000 were pledged as collateral against certain public
deposits at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Deposits associated with pledged securities had an aggregate
balance of $6,047,000 and $6,387,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were $3.0 million and $6.0 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Gross gains of $7,000 and $299,000 were realized on those sales in 2004 and 2003, respectively. There were no gross
losses realized in 2004 or 2003.
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The following table shows the combined investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2004.

Less than 12 Months _ 12 Months or More Total
Unrea- Unrea- Unrea-
Fair lized Fair lized Fair lized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

(In thousands)
U.S. Government Agency

securities $5446 § 88 $ 985 § 15 $6,431 $ 103
Corporate Bonds 3,112 17 - - 3112 17
Total’ 8558 $_ 105 $ 985 $§ 15 $9,543 $ 120

At December 31, 2004, the Company had twelve individual investment positions that were in an unrealized loss
position or impaired for the time frames indicated above. All of these investment positions’ impairments are deemed not
to be other-than-temporary impairments. The majority of the positions have experienced volatility in their market prices
as a result of current market conditions, with no credit concerns related to the entities that issued the positions.

3. LOANS RECEIVABLE:

Loans receivable at December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of the following:
2004 2003
(In thousands)

Mortgage loans:

One-to-four family residential $ 52,085 § 53,468
Commercial real estate 56,986 41,854
Construction 39,731 27,277
Other 122 101
Commercial loans 7,907 7,485
Consumer loans 6,988 7,563
163,819 137,748

Less --
Allowance for loan losses 1,684 1,397
Net deferred loan fees 204 252

161841 § 136,099

Substantially all of the Bank’s customers are located in the trade areas of Jefferson, Shelby and Bibb Counties in
Alabama. Although the Bank has established underwriting standards, including a collateral policy that stipulates thresholds
for loan to collateral values, the ability of its borrowers to meet their obligations is dependent upon local economic
conditions.

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank makes loans to officers, directors, employees and other related parties.
These loans are made on substantially the same terms as those prevailing for comparable transactions with others. Such
loans do not involve more than normal risk of collectibility nor do they present other unfavorable features. The amounts
of such related party loans at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were $3,010,000 and $2,997,000, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2004, new loans totaled $3,409,000, repayments were $3,305,000 and loans to parties who are
no longer related totaled $91,000.

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses is detailed below.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,397 $ 1,059
Provision 684 1,141
Charge-offs (470) (882)
Recoveries 73 79
Balance, end of period $ 1684 $ 1397

4. MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS:
Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The

unpaid principal balance of mortgage loans serviced were $3,699,000 and $5,408,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The loans are subserviced by a third party.
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The balance of capitalized servicing rights included in “other assets” in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition at December 31, 2004 and 2003, was $60,000 and $75,000, respectively. The servicing rights are recorded at
cost which approximates fair value. The following summarizes mortgage servicing rights.

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Beginning balance $ 75 $ 102
Amortization (15) (27)
Ending balance $ 60 $ 75

5. LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT:

Land, buildings and equipment at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are summarized as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Land ' $ 3465 $ 1656
Buildings and improvements 4,333 3,644
Furniture and equipment 2,550 2314
10,348 7,614
Less: Accumulated depreciation 2971 2,706

$ 7377 $ 4908
6. REAL ESTATE OWNED:

Real estate owned was $986,000 and $4,216,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Real estate owned
includes real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure. These amounts are recorded at the
lower of the loan balance prior to foreclosure, plus certain costs incurred for improvements to the property (“cost”) or fair
value less estimated costs to sell the property. Any write-down from the cost to fair value required at the time of foreclosure
is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write-downs and gains or losses recognized on the sale of these
properties are included in noninterest income or expense.

7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Total goodwill at December 31, 2004 and 2003, was $983,000. The core deposit intangible asset was $184,000 and
$233,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Amortization expense was $49,000 and $17,000 for 2004 and
2003, respectively. Estimated amortization expense related to core deposit intangible assets for the next five years is as
follows: $50,000 in 2005, $50,000 in 2006, $50,000 in 2007, and $34,000 in 2008.

8. DEPOSITS:

Deposits at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Transaction accounts $ 36384 § 35844
Savings accounts 26,872 25,519
Savings certificates 94.289 §9.746

$ 157545 § 151,109

The aggregate amount of jumbo savings certificates with a minimum denomination of $100,000 was $25.256,000 and
$19,711,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the scheduled maturities of savings certificates were as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Within one year $ 60657 § 44,115
One to three years 21,609 32,642
Three to five years 12,023 12,989

$ 94289 $ 89746
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Interest on deposits for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of the following:

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Transaction accounts $ 45 $ 46
Savings accounts 134 155
Savings certificates 2,778 2936

$ 2957 3,137

9. BORROWINGS:

The Company has long-term Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances of $17,000,000 at December 31, 2004
and 2003. The advance is at a fixed rate of 5.20% and has a maturity date of January 12, 2011. On January 12, 2006, the
FHLB has the option to convert the whole advance to a 3-month floating London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), at
which time the Bank may terminate the advance. The Bank has a blanket lien on its one-to-four family first mortgage loans
pledged as collateral to the FHLB.

The Company has a $2,500,000 line of credit with an outstanding balance of $0 and $1,080,000 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The line of credit is at LIBOR plus 2.80% and has a matunty date of February 20, 2006. A portion
of the stock of the Bank is pledged as collateral.

The following presents information concerning short-term borrowings with the FHLB at December 31,2004 and 2003.
Such short-term borrowings are issued on normal banking terms.

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Other short-term borrowings:

Balance $14,494 $ 5,700
Daily weighted-average rate during year 1.59% 1.19%
Weighted-average rate at year end 2.44% 1.15%

10. SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES:

On June 8, 2004, the Company established FirstFed Statutory Trust I (“Trust”), a wholly-owned statutory business
trust. The Company is the sole sponsor of the Trust and acquired the Trust’s common securities for $186,000. The Trust
was created for the exclusive purpose of issuing 30-year capital trust securities (“Trust Preferred Securities”) in the
aggregate amount of $6,000,000 and using proceeds to purchase junior subordinated debentures (“Subordinated
Debentures”) issted by the Company. The assets of the Trust consist primarily of the Subordinated Debentures. The
Company has applied FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46) and Revised Amendment to FIN 46 (FIN 46-R). Accordingly,
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition, the Company’s $186,000 investment in the Trust
is included in other assets and the $6,000,000 obligation of the Company is included in subordinated debt.

The Trust Preferred Securities bear a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR which is set each
quarter and matures on June 17, 2034. Distributions are payable quarterly. The Trust Preferred Securities are subject to
mandatory redemption upon repayment of the Subordinated Debentures at their stated maturity date or their earlier
redemption in an amount equal to their liquidation amount plus accumulated and unpaid distributions to the date of
redemption. The Company guarantees the payment of distributions and payments for redemption or liquidation of the Trust
Preferred Securities to the extent of funds held by the Trust.

The Subordinated Debentures are unsecured, bear an interest rate based on a spread over a 3 month LIBOR (equal
to the spread paid by the Trust on the Trust Preferred Securities) which is set each quarter and matures on June 17, 2034.
Interest is payable quarterly. The Company may defer the payment of interest at any time for a period not exceeding 20
consecutive quarters provided that deferral period does not extend past the stated maturity. During any such deferral period,
distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities will also be deferred and the Company’s ability to pay dividends on the
common shares will be restricted.

11. INCENTIVE COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

First Financial has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees. The plan
provides benefits based on final average earnings, covered compensation, and years of benefit service. The measurement

date is December 31. The following table sets forth the Plan’s funded status and amounts recognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements at, or during, the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:
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2004 2003
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2207 $ 2250
Service cost 177 156
Interest cost 125 118
Actuarial gain (46) (75)
Benefits and expenses paid (291) (242)

Benefit obligation at end of year 2,172 2,207

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,887 1,535
Actual gain on plan assets 105 252
Employer contribution 295 342
Benefits and expenses paid 29D _(242)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1,996 1,887

Funded status of plan:

Funded status of plan (175) (320
Unrecognized actuarial loss 650 723
Unrecognized net transition asset - (D

Net asset recognized - prepaid pension cost $ 475 $ 402

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $1.5 million and $1.6 as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Net periodic pension cost for 2004 and 2003 includes the following components:

Service cost $ 177 $ 136
Interest cost 125 118
Expected return on plan assets (103) (80)
Amortization of transitional asset (O (2)
Recognized actuarial loss 23 17

Net periodic benefit cost $ 221 $ 209

Assumptions used to determine the net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (the
measurement date), include the following:

2004 2003
Weighted average discount rate 6.25% 6.75%
Weighted average expected return on plan assets 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of annual compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations at December 31, 2004 and 2003 (the measurement date),
include the following:

2004 2003
Weighted average discount rate 6.00% 6.25%
Rate of annual compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

The expected long-term rate of return for the pension plan’s total assets is based on historical returns of the target

allocation categories. The pension plan’s long-term rate of return would meet or exceed the 8.0% expected long-term rate
of return.

The Company’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations and target allocations at December 31, 2004 and
2003, by asset category, are as follows:




Plan Assets at
— December 31,___

2004 2003
Asselt Category:
Equity Securities 30% 26%
Debt Securities 49% 44%
Cash equivalents 21% 30%
Total 100% 100%

Target Allocation at
December 31,

2004 2003
Asset Category:
Equity Securities 10-50% 10-50%
Debt Securities 20-95% 20-95%
Cash equivalents 10-30% 10-30%
Total 100% 100%

The investment strategy for the pension plan assets is to seek high current income and some capital appreciation while
accepting a low to moderate level of risk. Management meets periodically to review the strategy of the plan and to review
the performance of the plan assets and trustee.

Generally, the Company contributes the maximum amount deductible based on current income tax laws. The
Company expects to contribute $299,038 to the pension plan is 2005.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

2005 $0
2006 164,258
2007 187,174
2008 186,080
2009 153,809
Years 2010-2014 1,098,120

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP"™) for eligible employees. In December 1997,
the ESOP purchased 87,862 shares from treasury with the proceeds from a $950,000 note from the Company. The note
is secured by the common stock owned by the ESOP. Principal payments under the note are due in equal and annual
instaliments through December 2007; interest is payable at a rate of prime + 1%. The compensation expense related to the
ESOP for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, was approximately $72,000 and $69,000, respectively. Unearned
compensation related to the ESOP was approximately $285,000 and $381,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respgctively, andis shown as areduction of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains a Deferred Compensation Plan pursuant to which directors, officers and select employees
may annually elect to defer the receipt of Board fees and up to 25% of their salary, as applicable. Associated with the
Deferred Compensation Plan is a separate grantor trust to which all fee and salary deferrals may be contributed. The trust
assets will be used to pay benefits to participants, but are subject to the claims of general creditors of the Company until
distributed fromthe trust. Subject to the guidelines under the Deferred Compensation Plan, each participant may elect (i)
the time and manner under which his or her Plan benefit will be paid, and (ii) the measure of the deemed investment return
on his or her deferred compensation account. Such return may be based in whole or in part on either the rate of return on
the Company’s common stock or First Financial’s highest yielding one-year certificate of deposit. A participant who elects
the Company’s ¢common stock rate of return will be distributed shares of the Company’s common stock when his or her
plan benefit is paid. Vested benefits become payable at the election of a participant as made one year prior to distribution.
If a participant dies prior to collecting his or her entire vested benefit under the Deferred Compensation Plan, the value of
such vested but unpaid benefit will be paid to the director’s designated beneficiary or estate. The total amount deferred
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, was approximately $61,000 and $34,000, respectively. In accordance
with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 97-14, the Company shares owned by the trust are recorded as treasury stock and
the amount owed to participants is recorded in the stockholders’ equity section of the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition. The trust owned 240,036 and 221,283 shares of the Company’s common stock as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These shares are considered in the calculation of EPS.
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Stock Option and Incentive Plans

Options to purchase common stock of the Company have been granted under various incentive plans to directors,

officer, and other key employees. All plans provide for the grant of options at an exercise price equal to the fair market
value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Options become exercisable on a basis as determined by the Stock
Option Committee. In 2004, all options were exercisable at the date of grant. In 2003, 67,500 options became exercisable
in December 2004 and all other options were exercisable at the date of grant. Options under all plans expire no later than
10 years from date of grant. An analysis of stock options for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, follows:

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 333,510 $ 757 247,055 $ 6.8l
Granted 23,245 7.53 155,670 8.34
Exercised . (4,485) 5.72 (25,590) 5.73
Forfeited (12.311) 8.39 (43,625) 6.84
Outstanding at end of year 339,959 7.55 333510 7.57
Exercisable at end of year 339959 7.55 266,010 7.48
Weighted average fair value -
of options granted $ 14l 1.67

There were 80,04 1and 97,595 shares available for future grants at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The following table summarizes information about these stock options at December 31, 2004:

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Range of Number Outstanding Contractual

Exercise Prices at December 31, 2004 Life

$5.25-87.75 143,726 5.76 years
$7.89-311.00 194,659 7.56 years
$12.50 1,574 3.50 years

339,959

Some plans allow for the grant of restricted stock awards. The restricted stock awards are considered unearned
compensation at the time of the award and compensation is eamed and recorded over the vesting period. There were 3,484
and 3,734 shares of restricted stock awarded during the periods ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, repsectively. The
compensation expense related to the restricted stock awards for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, was
approximately $19,300 and $35,000, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, unecarned compensation related to
restricted stock awards was approximately $42,600 and $35,000, respectively, and is shown as a reduction to stockholders’
equity in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

. INCOME TAXES:

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$6.26

$8.48
$12.50

The provision (credit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 295 $ 140
State ~ 38 25
333 165
Deferred:
Federal (95) (174)
State (13) (5)
(108) (179
- Totals $ 225 $ (14)
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The differences between the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate of 34% to income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Pre-tax income at statutory rates $ 337 $ 132
Add (deduct):
State taxes 17 -
Tax exempt income (126) (133)
Employee stock ownership plan

expense (12) (14)
Other, net 9

Totals § 225 $ {14)

The components of the net deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Deferred tax asset:

Retirement and other benefit plans $ 335 $ 393
Allowance for loan losses 640 530
Other 86 38
1,061 961
Deferred tax liability:
Deferred loan fees a9 an
FHLB stock dividend ‘ (203) (203)
Unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale (133) 302)
Depreciation (225) 214)
Other (28) _(55)
(668) (845)
Net deferred tax asset $§ 393 § 116

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Loan Commitments

The Bank’s policy as to collateral and assumption of credit risk for loan commitments are essentially the same as those
for extensions of credit to its customers. At December 31, 2004, the Bank’s loan commitments outstanding to originate
and fund single-family mortgage loans, construction loans, commercial loans, home equity loans and lines of credit totaled
$23 .4 million to be held in the Bank’s loan portfolio. These commitments expire or mature as follows: $5.7 million within
90 days, $2.9 in 91-180 days, $9.1 million in 181 days to one year, $0.5 million in one to three years, and $5.2 million in
five to ten years.

Leases

First Financial had a lease agreement for a building in which a branch office is located. Rental expense under this
lease was $13,000 and $31,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The lease agreement
expired May 31, 2004. There are no future minimum lease payments.

Employment Agreements

The Company and the Bank have employment agreements with two executive officers which provide for salary
continuation for the remaining term of the contract and insurance benefits for a six-month period in the event of a change
in control of the Company or the death of the officer. These contracts currently expire on December 31, 2007, and the
maximum aggregate liability to the Company at December 31, 2004, is approximately $1.0 million.

Litigation

The Company and the Bank are parties to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business. Management,

after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and claims will not be
material to the consolidated financial statements.
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14. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Banking laws and other regulations limit the amount of dividends a bank subsidiary may pay without prior regulatory
approval. At December 31, 2004, no dividend payments could be paid without such prior approval.

The Company maintains a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. Under this Plan, participating
stockholders may elect to reinvest dividends into additional shares of the Company’s common stock. In addition, monthly
optional cash payments, not less than $50 and up to $2,000 per month, may be made into the Plan by participating
stockholders to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. There were 500,000 shares of common stock reserved
for participants of the Plan. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 113,826 shares and 96,325 shares, respectively. had been
purchased for participants under the Plan. The costs associated with this Plan were immaterial during the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003.

15. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

The Company’s fair values of financial instruments as presented in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No.
107 and their related carrying amounts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:

2004 2003

Carrying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS: (In thousands)
Cash on hand and in banks $ 3,125 $ 3,125 $ 2952 $ 2952
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 1,489 1,489 4.440 4.440
Federal funds sold 176 176 229 229
Securities available-for-sale 22,941 22,941 29,395 29,395
Loans held for sale 739 739 1.033 1,033
Loans receivable, net 161,841 163,898 136,099 137,323
Accrued interest receivable 1,134 1,134 1,095 1,095
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Deposits $ 157,545 $ 158,945 $ 151,109 $ 155,365
Borrowings 31,494 32,737 23,780 24 485
Subordinated debentures 6,000 6,000 - -
Accrued interest payable 238 238 217 217

In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values have been estimated using present value or other
valuation techniques. These methods are highly sensitive to the assumptions used, such as those concerning appropriate
discount rates and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts the Company could realize in a current settlement of the underlying financial instruments, and they are not
intended to represent a measure of the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values provided above:

Cash on Hand and in Banks, Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Banks, and Federal F unds Sold

The carrying value of highly liquid instruments, such as cash on hand, interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions
and federal funds sold, are considered to approximate their fair values.

Securities Available-for-Sale
Substantially all of the Company’s securities have a readily determinable fair value. Fair values for these securities
are based on quoted market prices, where available. If not available, fair values are based on market prices of comparable

instruments. The carrying amount of accrued interest on securities approximates fair value.

Loans Held for Sale

All of the Company’s loans held for sale are to be sold to third-party investors and have a readily determinable fair
value.

Loans Receivable, Net
For loans with rates that are repriced in coordination with movements in market rates and with no significant change
in credit risk, fair value estimates are based on carrying values. The fair values for other types of loans are estimated by

discounting future cash flows using current rates at which loans with similar terms would be made to borrowers of similar
credit ratings. The carrying amount of accrued interest on loans approximates fair value.
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Deposits

The fair value of deposit liabilities with no stated maturity are disclosed as the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date((i.e., at their carrying amount). The fair values of fixed maturity deposits are estimated using a discounted
cash flow calculation that applies rates currently offered for time deposits of similar remaining maturities.

The econpmic value attributable to the long-term relationship with depositors who provide low-cost funds to the
Company is considered to be a separate intangible asset and is excluded from the presentation above. The carrying amount
of accrued interest on deposits approximates fair value.

Borrowings
The fair value of FHLB advances are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rate currently
offered for borrowings of similar terms and remaining maturity. The carrying amount of accrued interest on FHLB

advances approximates fair value.

The fair value of the amount outstanding under the variable rate line of credit and accrued interest approximates their
fair value.

Subordinated Debentures

The amount of subordinated debentures outstanding are at a variable rate and approximate fair value.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments

Off-balance sheet financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit to be held
in the Bank’s loan portfalio. The fair value of such instruments is negligible since the arrangements are at current rates,
are for short periods, and have no significant credit exposure.
16. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE:

The principal components of other operating expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as

follows:
2004 2003
(In thousands)

Legal and professional $ 182 $ 141
Supplies and printing 104 100
Insurance and bonds 118 117
Advertising 105 87
Real estate owned expense 552 187
Data processing and ATM expense 632 544
Other expense 484 223

$ 2177 $ 1399
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17. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Separate condensed financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,

are presented below:

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
(In thousands)

2004 2003
ASSETS:
Interest-bearing deposits $ 1,682 $ 140
Investment in subsidiaries 20,070 17,361
Bank owned life insurance 1,692 1,592
Other assets 1,296 19
’ $ 24740 $.19,892
LIABILITIES: -
Borrowings $ - $ 1,080
Subordinated debentures 6,000 -
Dividend payable 168 166
Other liabilities 154 94
6,322 1,340
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock - -
Common stock 32 32
Paid-in-capital 8,590 8,426
Retained earnings 15,976 16,047
- Deferred compensation obligation 2,114 1,969
Deferred compensation treasury stock 2,114) (1,969)
Treasury stock (6,088) (6,088)
Uneamed compensation (328) (416)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 236 551
18418 8,552
S20780  FI0E%
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
(In thousands)
2004 2003
Income from subsidiaries:

Interest b 21 $ 25
Other income 113 101
Interest expense (176) -
Operating expense (310) (573)
Loss before income taxes and equity in

undistributed current year subsidiaries’

earnings (352) (447)
Income tax benefit 165 201
Loss before equity in undistributed current .

year subsidiaries’ earnings (187) (246)
Equity in undistributed current year

subsidiaries’ eamnings 952 649

Net income $ 765 $ 403
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

(In thousands)

Operating Activities:
Net income

Distribution in excess of equity in current year earnings of

subsidiaries

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization of unearmed compensation
-Increase in cash surrender value of
Bank Owned Life Insurance
Provision for deferred compensation
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing Activities:
Capital contribution to subsidiary
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment
Dividends paid
Purchase of treasury stock for Deferred Compensation
Plan
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE:

2004

2003

$ 765 $ 403
(952) _(649)
(187 (246)

114 132
(100) (102)
159 116
(488) 700
315 846
2,000 -
(2,000) -
26 146

135 116
(833) (823)
(159) (116)
6,000 -
11,950 825
(3.075) (750)
4.044 (602)
1,542 2
140 42

$ 1682 $ 40

The Company considers the holding company a separate reportable segment from the banking operations since it does
not offer products or services or interact with customers, but does meet the quantitative threshold as outlined in the SFAS

No.131.

The Company’s-segment disclosure is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:

2004
Banking Holding Total
Operations Company Eliminations Company
(In thousands)
Net interest income $ 5816 $ (155) $ - $ 5,661
Provision for loan losses 684 - - 684
Noninterest income 2,799 113 - 2,912
Noninterest expense 6,589 310 - 6.899
Income (loss) before income
taxes 1,342 (352) - 990
Income tax expense (benefit) _ 390 (165) - . 225
Net income (loss) Q, 952 $ ( ﬁ) $ - ;i 765
Total assets $211,732 24,740 § (22,029 55214,443
Capital expenditures $ 359 3 - 3 - $_3.590
Goodwill $ 983 $ - $ - $ 983
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2003

Banking Holding Total
Operations Company Eliminations _Company_
(In thousands)
Net interest income $ 4943 $ 25 $ - $ 4968
Provision for loan losses 1,141 - - 1.141
Noninterest income 2,238 101 - 2,339
Noninterest expense 5,204 573 - 5,771
Income before

income taxes 836 (447) - 389
Income tax expense (benefit) 187 (201) - (14)
Net income 3 649 $  (246) $ - $ 403
Total assets $192,195 19,892 (17.876 $194,211
Capital expenditures 3 963 $ - $ - $ 963
Goodwill $ 983 $ - $ - $ 983

Depreciation expense is not disclosed separately by segment, since this is not considered a significant component of
the profitability of a financial institution.

19. REGULATORY MATTERS:

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking agencies.
The quantitative measures to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios, set forth
in the table below, of Total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), of Tier
1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined), and Tangible capital to average assets. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Management believes, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, that the Bank meets all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the Bank
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the
Bank must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the following
table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the institutions’
category.

Actual capital amounts in addition to required amounts and amounts needed to be well capitalized for Tier I, Total,
Tier 1 Leverage, and Tangible ratios for the Company and the Bank, as applicable, are as follows:

December 31, 2004
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Tier | Risk-Based Capital
Consolidated $22,957 12.6% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 18,598 10.4% $ 7,188 4.0% $ 10,782 6.0%
Total Risk-Based Capital
Consolidated $ 24,641 13.5% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 20,282 11.3% $ 14377 8.0% $ 17,971 10.0%
Tier 1 Leverage
Consolidated $ 22,957 10.9% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 18,598 8.8% $ 8416 4.0% $ 10,521 5.0%
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December 31, 2003
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital
Consolidated $ 16,820 11.5% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First [Financial Bank 15,509 10.8% $ 5,761 4.0% $ 8,642 6.0%
Total Risk-Based Capital
Consolidated $ 18,057 12.3% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 16,906 11.7% $ 11,523 8.0% $ 14,404 10.0%
Tier | Leverage
Consolidated $ 16,820 9.0% N/A N/A N/A. N/A
First Financial Bank 15,509 8.3% $ 7,506 4.0% $ 9,382 5.0%
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FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.

P.O. Box 340 1630 4th Avenue North Bessemer, Alabama 35021-0340 205/428-8472

March 23, 2005

Dear Stockholder:

We invite you to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”) of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (the
“Company”) to be held at the Bright Star Restaurant located at 304 19" Street North, Bessemer, Alabama, on Tuesday, April
26, 2005, at 4:30 p.m.. local time.

The attached Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be transacted at the Meeting.
During the Meeting. we will also report on the Company’s operations for fiscal 2004. Directors and officers of the
Company, as well as representatives of the Company’s independent auditors, will be present to respond to any questions the
stockholders may have.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, WE URGE YOU TO SIGN, DATE AND RETURN
THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS SOON AS POSSIBLE EVEN IF YOU CURRENTLY PLAN TO ATTEND
THE MEETING. Your vote is important, regardless of the number of shares you own. This will not prevent you from
voting in person but will assure that your vote is counted if you are unable to attend the Meeting.

Sincerely,

B, Lyeilris AT

B. K. Goodwin. Il
Chairman of the Board. Chief Executive
Officer and President




FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.
1630 Fourth Avenue North
Bessemer, Alabama 35020

(205) 428-8472

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on April 26, 2005

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”) of FirstFed Bancorp, Inc.
(the “Company”) will be held at the Bright Star Restaurant located at 304 19" Street North, Bessemer. Alabama. on
Tuesday, April 26, 2005, at 4:30 p.m., local time.

A Proxy Card and a Proxy Statement for the Meeting are enclosed.

The Meeting is for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following matters:

@) The election of two directors of the Company for terms of three years; and

(ii) The transaction of such other matters as may properly come before the Meeting or any
adjournments thereof.

The Board of Directors is not aware of any other business to come before the Meeting.

Any action may be taken on the foregoing proposals at the Meeting on the date specified above or on any date or
dates to which, by original or later adjournment, the Meeting may be adjourned. Stockholders of record at the close of
business on March 10, 2005, are the stockholders entitled to vote at the Meeting and any adjournments thereof.

You are requested to fill in and sign the enclosed form of proxy which is solicited by the Board of Directors and
to mail it promptly in the enclosed envelope. The proxy will not be used if you attend and vote at the Meeting in person.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

s § sl 2

Lynn J. Joyce
Secretary
Bessemer, Alabama
March 23, 2005

IMPORTANT: THE PROMPT RETURN OF PROXIES WILL SAVE THE COMPANY THE EXPENSE OF
FURTHER REQUESTS FOR PROXIES IN ORDER TO ENSURE A QUORUM. A SELF-ADDRESSED
ENVELOPE IS ENCLOSED FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE. NO POSTAGE IS REQUIRED IF MAILED IN THE
UNITED STATES.




PROXY STATEMENT
OF
FIRSTFED BANCORP, INC.

1630 Fourth Avenue North
Bessemer, Alabama 35020

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
April 26, 2005

GENERAL

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of
FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) to be used at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company (the “Meeting”)
which will be held at the Bright Star Restaurant located at 304 19" Street North, Bessemer, Alabama, on Tuesday, April 26,
2003, at 4:30 p.m,, local time. The accompanying Notice of Meeting and this Proxy Statement are being first mailed to
stockholders on or about March 23, 2005.

VOTING AND REVOCABILITY OF PROXIES

Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors of the Company will be voted in accordance with the directions given
therein. Where no instructions are indicated, proxies will be voted FOR the nominees for director set forth below.
The proxy confers discretionary authority on the persons named therein to vote with respect to the election of any person as
a director where the nominee is unable to serve or for good cause will not serve, with respect to matters incident to the
conduct of the Meeting, and with respect to any other matter presented to the Meeting if notice of such matter has not been
delivered to the Company in accordance with the Bylaws. If any other business is presented at the Meeting as to which
proxies in the accompanying form confer discretionary authority, proxies will be voted by those named therein in
accordance with the determination of a majority of the Board of Directors. Proxies marked as abstentions will not be
counted as votes cast. In addition, shares held in street name which have been designated by brokers on proxy cards as not
voted will not be counted as votes cast. Proxies marked as abstentions or as broker no votes, however, will be treated as
shares present for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.

Stockholders who execute proxies retain the right to revoke them at any time. Unless so revoked, the shares
represented by such proxies will be voted at the Meeting and all adjournments thereof. Proxies may be revoked by written
notice to Lynn J. Joyce, Secretary of the Company, at the address shown above, by filing of a later-dated proxy prior to a
vote being taken on:a particular proposal at the Meeting or by attending the Meeting and voting in person. A proxy will not
be voted if a stockholder attends the Meeting and votes in person. However, the mere presence of a stockholder at the
Meeting will not, by itself, revoke such stockholder’s proxy.

VOTING SECURITIES

Stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 1Q, 2005 (the “Record Date”) are entitled to one vote
for each share of the Company’s common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Common Stock”), then held, except that
pursuant to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, beneficial owners of shares of Common Stock exceeding 10% of
the the:i-outstanding shares of Common Stock are not permitted to vote such excess shares. As of the Record Date, the
Company had 3,258,062 shares of Common Stock issued, of which 2,428,114 shares were outstanding. The presence, in
person or by proxy, of the holders of record of shares of capital stock of the Company entitling the holders to cast a majority
of the votes entitled to be cast is necessary to constitute a quorum at the Meeting.




SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

PRINCIPAL OWNERS OF COMMON STOCK

Persons and groups beneficially owning more than 5% of the Common Stock are required under federal securities

laws to file certain reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) detailing such ownership. The following
table sets forth information, as of the Record Date. with respect to any person, including any group of persons, known by
the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Stock. Other than as
disclosed below, management knows of no person who beneficially owned more than 5% of the Common Stock at the
Record Date.

Name and Address of Amount and Nature of Percent of Common
Beneficial Owner Beneficial Qwnership(1) Stock Outstandisng

First Financial Bank
Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust
1630 Fourth Avenue North
Bessemer, Alabama 35020 185,983 (2) 7.66%

The Trust Company of Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc.
800 Shades Creek Parkway, Ste. 125
Birmingham, Alabama 35209 426,019 (3) 17.55%

First Financial Fund, Inc. (4)
1680 38™ Street, Ste. 800
Boulder, Colorado 80301 252,000 10.38%

(M

@

©)]
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Based on information furnished by the respective beneficial owners. In accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), a person is deemed to be the beneficial owner, for
purposes of this table, if that person either has, or shares, voting or investment power with respect to such Common
Stock, or has aright to acquire beneficial ownership at any time within 60 days from the Record Date. As used herein,
“voting power” is the power to vote or direct the voting of shares, and “investment power” is the power to dispose or
direct the disposition of shares. Except as otherwise noted, ownership is direct, and the named individuals exercise
sole voting and investment power over the shares of the Common Stock.

Shares of Common Stock initially were acquired by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust (“ESOP") in
connection with the mutual-to-stock conversion of First Federal Savings Bank (“First Federal”), the Company’s
wholly-owned thrift subsidiary which merged with and into First Financial Bank (“First Financial”), the Company’s
wholly-owned commercial bank subsidiary, in 2002. A committee consisting of all directors of the Company
administers the ESOP. The Trust Company of Sterne Agee & Leach, Inc. (“The Trust Company”), an unrelated
corporate trustee for the ESOP (the “ESOP Trustee”), has been appointed by the Board of Directors, which may
instruct the ESOP Trustee regarding investment of funds contributed to the ESOP. Shares held by the ESOP and
allocated to participating employees must be voted in accordance with the instructions received from the participating
employees. Unallocated shares, and allocated shares for which no instruction has been received, will be voted in the
same proportion as the allocated shares for which instruction has been received. As of the Record Date, 159,624
shares of Common Stock in the ESOP had been allocated to participating employees, and. therefore, the ESOP Trustee
will vote the remaining 26,359 unallocated shares in the same proportion as allocated shares.

The Trust Company is the beneficial owner of 185,983 shares as the ESOP Trustee. See footnote 2 above. The Trust
Company is also the beneficial owner of 240,036 shares as trustee for the FirstFed Bancorp, Inc. Deferred
Compensation Plan. As trustee of such plans, The Trust Company has the power to vote, or to direct the vote, of
426,019 shares, and the power to dispose, or to direct the disposition. of 399,660 shares.

As reported in the latest Schedule 13G filed by such persons. First Financial Fund. Inc. is a registered closed-end
investment company which has sole voting and shared dispositive power with respect to 252,000 shares, and
Wellington Management Company, LLP is the investment adviser to First Financial Fund, Inc.
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STOCK OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, the beneficial ownership of the Company’s Common Stock by
each of the Company'’s directors and nominees, the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table and by
all executive officers and directors as a group.

Amount and Nature of Percent of Common

Name Beneficial Ownership(1) Stock Outstanding
Fred T. Blair 44314 1.81%
B. K. Goodwin, 111 121,973 (2) 4.87%
James B. Koikos 58,002 2.37%
E. H. Moore, Jr. 94,609 3.87%
James E. Mulkin 97,732 4.00%
G. Larry Russell 64,480 2.64%
Lynn J. Joyce 64,911 (2) 2.63%
All directors and executive officers as

a group (7 persons) 546,021 (2) 20.78%

(1) For the definition of beneficial ownership, see footnote | to the previous table. Includes certain shares of Common
Stock owned by businesses in which the director or executive officer is an officer or major stockholder or by spouses,
by immediate family members, or as a custodian or trustee for minor children, over which shares the director or
executive officer effectively exercises sole, or shares, voting and/or investment power, unless otherwise indicated.
Includes 15,044 shares, 78,910 shares, 23,786 shares, 17,044 shares, 12,174 shares, 14,471 shares, 38,518 shares and
199,947 shares of Common Stock, as to which shares Directors Blair, Goodwin, Koikos, Moore, Mulkin and Russell,
and Mrs. Joyce and all executive officers and directors as a group, respectively, have the right to purchase pursuant to
stock options exercisable within 60 days after the Record Date. Includes 401 shares of Common Stock for Mrs. Joyce
pursuant to the Company's Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) as to which shares such officer has
voting power.

(2) Includes 14,271 shares, 13,978 shares and 28,249 shares of Common Stock owned by the ESOP and allocated to the
accounts of Mr. Goodwin, Mrs. Joyce and all executive officers as a group, respectively.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Based solely on the Company’s review of the copies of ownership reports which it has received in the past fiscal
year, or written representations from officers, from directors or from persons who own more than 10% of the Common
Stock that no annual report of change in beneficial ownership was required, the Company believes that during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004, all the filing requirements applicable to such persons have been timely met except that a
report on Form 4 of a grant of stock options and restricted stock was not filed on a timely basis for each of the Company’s
directors and executive officers (named above), but all such reports were subsequently filed.

PROPOSAL I - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Centificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Company provide that the number of directors shall be such
number as the Board of Directors shall designate. The Board of Directors has resolved that the number of directors be six
members. Mr. Malcolm E. Lewis serves as Directors Emeritus of the Company.

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation requires that directors be divided into three classes, as nearly equal in
number as possible, each class to serve for a three-year period and until their successors are elected and qualified, with
approximately one-third of the directors elected each year. The Board of Directors has nominated for election as director
James B. Koikos and E. H. Moore, Jr., both of whom are currently members of the Board, to each serve as a director for a
three-year term and until his successor is elected and has qualified. Under Delaware law, directors are elected by a plurality
of the votes present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors.
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It is intended that the persons named in the proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted for the
election of the named nominees. If either nominee is unable to serve. the shares represented by all properly executed
proxies that have not been revoked will be voted for the election of such substitute as the Board of Directors may

" recommend, or the size of the Board of Directors may be reduced to eliminate the vacancy. Atthistime. the Board knows
of no reason why either nominee might be unavailable to serve.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” election as directors of all the nominees listed below.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding each of the Company's directors. Each director of the
Company is also a member of the Board of Directors of First Financial.

BOARD NOMINEES FOR TERMS TO EXPIRE IN 2008

Current
Ageat Year First Elected as Term to
Name Record Date Director(1) Expire
James B. Koikos 66 1995 2005
E. H. Moore, Jr. 70 1991 2005
DIRECTORS CONTINUING IN OFFICE
Current
Age at Year First Elected as Termto
Name Record Date Director(1) Expire
Fred T. Blair 76 1968 2006
G. Larry Russell 54 1990 2006
B. K. Goodwin, 11 52 1995 2007
James E. Mulkin 74 1992 2007

(1) Includes term of office as director of First Federal Savings Bank (“First Federal”) prior to formation of the Company as
the holding company for First Federal in 1991.

Unless otherwise stated, the principal occupation of each director of the Company for the last five years is set
forth below.

James B. Koikos. Mr. Koikos is a restaurateur. He is owner/partner of the Bright Star Restaurant, Bessemer,
Alabama.

E. H. Moore, Jr. Mr. Moore is President and owner of Buddy Moore Trucking, Inc. in Birmingham, Alabama.
Fred T. Blair. Mr. Blair is retired. On January 1, 1996, Mr. Blair retired from his positions as Chairman of the
Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and First Federal. He had served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since its inception in 1991 and of First Federal since 1968 and Chairman since 1995.

G. Larry Russell. Mr. Russell is a self-employed Certified Public Accountant in Bessemer, Alabama.




B. K. Goodwin, III. Mr. Goodwin is the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of the
Company and First Financial, positions he has occupied since January 1, 1996.

James E. Mulkin. Mr. Mulkin is the President of Mulkin Enterprises, Bessemer, Alabama, a diversified business
operation.

Director Emeritus

Malcolm E. Lewis. Mr. Lewis retired. He was formerly owner and President of Polar Storage Locker Plant, a
processor for wholesale and retail meat sales.

Other Executive Officer

Lynn ]J. Joyce, age 41, is Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer of the
Company and First Financial.

Corporate Governance

Board of Director and Stockholder Meetings. The Board of Directors met 17 times during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004. Al directors attended at least 75% of the Board of Directors meetings and assigned committee
meetings in 2004. The Company encourages directors attendance at its annual stockholder meetings and requests that
directors make reasonable efforts to attend such meetings. All of the members of the Board of Directors attended the 2004
annual meeting of stockholders.

Board of Director Independence. Each year, the Board of Directors reviews the relationships that each director
has with the Company and with other parties. Only those directors who do not have any of the categorical relationships that
preclude them from being independent within the meaning of applicable Nasdaq rules and who the Board of Directors
affirmatively determines have no relationships that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying
out the responsibilities of a director are considered to be “independent directors.” The Board of Directors has reviewed a
number of factors to evaluate the independence of each of its members. These factors include its members’ relationships
with the Company and its competitors, suppliers and customers; their relationships with management and other directors;
the relationships their current and former employers have with the Company; and the relationships between the Company
and other companies of which the Company’s Board members are directors or executive officers. After evaluating these
factors, the Board of Directors has determined that Messrs. Koikos, Moore, Mulkin, Blair and Russell are independent
directors of the Company within the meaning of applicable National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (“NASD")
listing standards.

Independent members of the Board of Directors of the Company met in executive session without management
present two times:during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, and are scheduled to do so at least two times per year.

Stockholder Communications. Stockholders may communicate directly with members of the Board of Directors
or the individual chairman of standing Board of Directors committees by writing directly to those individuals at the
following address: 1630 Fourth Avenue North, Bessemer, Alabama 35020. The Company’s general policy is to forward,
and not to intentionally screen, any mail received at the Company’s corporate office that is sent directly to an individual,
unless the Company believes the communication may pose a security risk. The Board of Directors reserves the right to
revise this policy in the event it is abused, becomes unworkable or otherwise does not efficiently serve the policy's
purposes.

Code of Ethics. The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all officers, other employees
and directors. The Code of Ethics was included as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, which was filed with the SEC on March 30, 2004.




Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. The Board of Directors has determined that all of the directors who serve on these
committees are independent within the meaning of applicable SEC rules and NASD listing standards. The Board of
Directors has adopted a charter for each of the three standing committees. '

Audit Commirtee. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Russell, who serves as the chairman, and
Messrs. Blair, Koikos. Moore, and Mulkin. Each of the members of the committee is independent within the meaning of
applicable Nasdaq rules. The Board of Directors has determined that the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Russell, is
an “audit committee financial expert™ as defined in Item 401(e) of Regulation S-B.

The Audit Committee has oversight responsibility for the quality and integrity of the Company’s financial
statements. The committee meets privately with the independent auditors, has the sole authority to retain and dismiss tne
independent auditors and reviews their performance and independence from management. The independent auditors have
unrestricted access and report directly to the committee. The Audit Committee met four times during 2003. The primary
functions of the Audit Committee are to oversee: (i) the audit of the financial statements of the Company provided to the
SEC, the stockholders and the general public: (ii) the Company’s internal financial and accounting processes; and (iii) the
independent audit process. Additionally, the Audit Committee has responsibilities relating to: (i) registered public
accounting firms; (ii) complaints relating to accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters; (iii) authority to
engage advisors; and (iv) funding as determined by the audit committee. These and other aspects of the Audit Committee’s
authority are more particularly described in the Audit Committee Charter adopted by the Board of Directors, as amended
and attached hereto as Appendix A. ) R

In 2004, the Audit Committee adopted a formal policy concerning approval of audit and non-audit sérvices to be
provided to the Company by its independent auditor, KPMG LLP. The policy requires that all services to be provided by
KPMG LLP, including audit services and permitted audit-related services, must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
KPMG LLP does not provide non-audit services to the Company. The Audit Committee approved all audit and audit-
related services provided by KPMG LLP during 2004.

Compensation Commitiee. The independent members of the Board of Directors serve as the Compensation
Committee. The Compensation Committee met one time. The functions of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning compensation, including incentive compensation, of the executive
officers. The Compensation Committee also administers the Company’s stock incentive plans.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The independent members of the Board of Directors serve as
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for evaluating and recommending individuals for election or re-election to the Board of Directors, including
those recommendations submitted by stockholders, the evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors and its
committees, and the evaluation and recommendation of corporate governance policies. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee Charter, attached as Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy Statement furnished in connection with
the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the SEC on March 22, 2004, is not currently available on the
Company’s website. In 2004, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting for selecting
management nominees for election as directors.

It is a policy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee that candidates for director possess the
highest personal and professional integrity, have demonstrated exceptional ability and judgment and have skills and
expertise appropriate for the Company and serving the long-term interests of the Company's stockholders. The committee's
process for identifying and evaluating nominees is as follows: (1) in the case of incumbent directors whose terms of office
are set to expire, the committee reviews such directors’ overall service to the Company during their terms, including the
number of meetings attended, level of participation, quality of performance, and any related party transactions with the
Company during the applicable time period; and (2) in the case of new director candidates, the committce first conducts any
appropriate and necessary inquiries into the backgrounds and qualifications of possible candidates after considering the
function and needs of the Board of Directors. The committee meets to discuss and consider such candidates” qualifications,
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including whether the nominee is independent within the meaning of Nasdaq rules, and then selects a candidate for
recommendation'to the Board of Directors by majority vote. In seeking potential nominees, the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee uses its and management’s network of contacts to compile a list of potential candidates, but may
also engage, if it deems appropriate, a professional search firm. To date, the Nominating and Corporate Govemance
Committee has not paid a fee to any third party to assist in the process of identifying or evaluating director candidates, nor
has the committee rejected a umely director nominee from a slockholder(s) holding more than 5% of the Company’s voting
stock. &

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by
stockholders provided the stockholders follow the procedures set forth in Article I, Section 6(c) of the Company’s By-laws.
The committee does not intend to alter the manner in which it evaluates candidates, including the criteria set forth above,
based on whether the candidate was recommended by a stockholder or otherwise.

Article I, Section 6(c) of the Company's By-laws governs nominations of candidates for election as director at any
annual meeting of stockholders and provides that such nominations, other than those made by the Board, may be made by
any stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting if the nomination is made in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Article I, Section 6(c), which are summarized below.

A stockholder's notice of nomination must be delivered to, or mailed and received at, the Company’s principal
executive offices.not later than 90 days before the date of the meeting; provided, however, that in the event less than 100
days’ notice or prior disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder to be
timely must be received not later than the tenth day following the date on which notice was mailed or public disclosure was
made. A stockholder’s notice must set forth (i) as to each nominee, all information relating to such person that is required
to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act (including such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as
a nominee and serving as a director if elected); and (ii) as to the stockholder giving the notice, the name and address, as they
appear in the Company’s books, of such stockholder, and the class and number of shares of the Company’s capital stock
that are beneficially owned by such stockholder.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may reject any nomination by a stockholder not made in
accordance with the requirements of Article I, Section 6(c).

Audit Committee Report

The following Report of the Audit Commitiee does not constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed
filed or incorporated by reference into any other Company filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act,
except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates this Report by reference therein.

During ffiscal 2000, the Audit Committee developed a Charter, which was approved by the full Board of Directors
and amended in 2004. The Charter reflects standards set forth in Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
regulations and NASD listing standards, recognizes the Audit Committee’s responsibilities.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibility as to the audit process, the Audit Committee obtained from the
mdependent auditors a formal written statement describing all relationships between the auditors and the Company that
might bear on theauditors’ independence consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, “Independence
Discussions with Audit Committees”. The Committee discussed with the auditors any relationships that may impact their
objectivity and independence and satisfied itself as to the auditors’ independence. The Committee also discussed with
management and the independent auditors the quality and adequacy of the Company’s intemal controls and the
compliance/internal audit function. The Committee reviewed with both the independent and the compliance/internal
auditors their audit plans, audit scope, and identification of audit risks.

The Committee discussed and reviewed with the independent auditors all communications required by generally
accepted auditing standards, including those described in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended,
“Communication with Audit Committees” and, with and without management present, discussed and reviewed the results of




the independent auditors’ examination of the financial statements. The Committee also discussed the results of the
compliance/internal audit examinations.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s internal controls and. consistent with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules adopted thereunder. met with management and the auditors to receive any information
concerning significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which could
adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and any fraud. whether or not
material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. The Audit Committee adopted a plan for compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules promulgated thereunder. The Audit Committee will obtain updates by
management on the process. The Audit Committee held discussions with management prior to the relcase of the
Company’s quarterly financial information and the filing of any such information with the SEC.

The Committee reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December
31, 2004, with management and the independent auditors. Management has the responsibility for the preparation of the
Company’s financial statements and the independent auditors have the responsibility for the examination of those
statements.

Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the independent auditors, the
Committee recommended to the Board (and the Board approved) that the Company’s audited financial statements be
included in its Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2004, for filing with the SEC. The
Committee also appointed the independent auditors.

The Audit Committee also annually reviews its charter, reports to the Board of Directors on its performance and
conducts a committee self-assessment process.

Respectfully submitted on March 15, 2005.

G. Larry Russell, Chairman
Fred T. Blair

James B. Koikos

E. H. Moore, Jr.

James E. Mulkin

Executive Compensation and Other Benefits

Summary Compensation Table. The following table sets forth the cash and noncash compensation for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, awarded to or earned by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financiai
Officer of the Company. No other executive officer of the Company eamed salary and bonus for the year ended December
31, 2004, in excess of $100,000 for services rendered in all capacities to the Company and its subsidiaries.




Long-Term Compensation

Annual Compensation Awards Payouts
Other Restricted  Securities ‘

Name and Annual Stock Underlying LTIP All Other
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus = Compensation (1) Awards(2) Options Payouts Compensation
B. K. Goodwin, Il

Chairman of the 2004 $218,700 $13.778 5 - $ 2,940(3) 1,960 $ - 8§ 21,364(5)
Board, Chief

Executive Officer 2003 $218,700 $ 18,655 5 - $ 4,343 32485 § - § 22205
and President of

the Company 2002 $218,700 $ 3937 5 - $ 623 415  $ - $ 26,421
and First Financial

Lynn J. Joyce

Chief Financial Officer, 2004 $119,400 $ 7,535 S - $ 1,612(4) 1,075 $ - § 2,760(5)
Executive Vice Presi-

dent, Secretary and 2003 $115,000 $ 9759 35 - $ 2272 16300 $ - § 2432
Treasurer of the

Company and First 2002 $108,700 $ 1,957 5 - $ 308 20 %8 - % 1,881
Financial

(1) Executive officers of the Company receive indirect compensation in the form of certain perquisites and other personal
benefits. The amount of such benefits received by the named executive officers during the year ended December 31,
2004, did not exceed 10% of the executive officer’s salary and bonus.

(2) Calculated by multiplying the number of shares of Common Stock awarded pursuant to the Incentive Plan based on the
closing sale price of the Common Stock on the date the shares were awarded as reported on the Nasdaq SmallCap
Market ($7.50 per share). Pursuant to the Incentive Plan, Mr. Goodwin and Mrs. Joyce are entitled to receive
dividends and other distributions made with respect to such shares. See “Directors’ Compensation.”

(3) Asof December 31, 2004, Mr. Goodwin held 750 shares of restricted stock with an aggregate value of $5,468 based
on the closing sale price of the Common Stock on such date ($7.29 per share). Of this amount, 324 shares will vest in
2005, 296 shares will vest in 2006 and 130 shares will vest in 2007.

(4) AsofDecemhber 31, 2004, Mrs. Joyce held 401 shares of restricted stock with an aggregate value of $2,923 based on
the closing sale price of the Common Stock on such date ($7.29 per share). Of this amount, 172 shares will vest in
2005, 158 shares will vest in 2006 and 71 shares will vest in 2007.

(5) Includes director’s fees of $18,000 paid to Mr. Goodwin. See “ Directors’ Compensation.” Also includes $3,364 and

$2,760 paid to Mr. Goodwin and Mrs. Joyce, respectively, for unused vacation and sick leave.

Option Granis in the Year Ended December 31, 2004. The following table contains information concerning

grants of stock options during the year ended December 31, 2004, to the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table, above. Options were granted pursuant to the Incentive Compensation Plan.

Number of Securities % of Total Options  Exercise or Base

Underlying Options Granted to Employees Price Expiration
Name Granted (# of Shares) in Fiscal Year (3 per Share) Date
B. K. Goodwin, [l 1,960 11.4% $7.50 9/30/2014
Lynn J. Joyce 1,075 6.2% $7.50 9/30/2014



Aggregate Year Ended December 31, 2004, Option Exercises and December 31, 2004, Option Values. The
following table scts forth information concerning options excrcised during the year ended December 31, 2004, and the
value of options held by the named exccutive officers at Decémber 31, 2004,

Number of Securitics Value of Unexercised
Underlying Exercised In-the-Money Options
Shares Value Options at December 31, 2004  December 31, 2004(1)
Name Acquired on Exercise  Realized(1)  Exercisable/Unexercisable Excreisable/Unexercisable
B. K. Goodwin, 1 $ - 78.910/-- $ 46,190/$0
Lynn J. Joyce 800 $ 1.632 38.518/-- $22,047/30

(1) Calculated based on the fair market value of the underlying Common Stock as reported on the Nasdag SmallCap
Market at December 31, 2004.

Employment Agreements. Effective January 1. 1996, the Company and First Financial entered into employment
agreements with Mr. Goodwin in his respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company and
First Financial and with Mrs. Joyce as Executive Vice President of First Financial (collectively, the “Employment
Agreements™). The Employment Agreements have been assumed by First Financial and are intended to enable the
Company and its banking subsidiaries to maintain a stable and competent management base.

The Employment Agreements provide for three-year terms and may be extended each year for an additional year
so that the remaining term shall be three years. The Employment Agreements were extended for an additional year as of
January 1, 2004. The Employment Agreements provide for, among other things, a discretionary cash bonus, participation in
all employee benefit plans, death benefits and reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket business expenses. In the event
of the executive's death, the Employment Agreements provide for payment of the remaining compensation due thereunder.
plus medical insurance for the executive’s spouse for six months thereafter.

The Employment Agreements provide for termination for cause at any time. In the event termination is other than
for cause, the executive would be entitled to receive his base salary for the remaining term of the Employment Agreement.
plus in the case of Mr. Goodwin. his salary for an additional 12-month period. In addition, Mr. Goodwin would be entitled.
at his election, to continued insurance benefits coverage through the expiration of the term of his Employment Agreements
or a cash payment in an amount equal to the cost of obtaining substantially equal benefits, while Mrs. Joyce would be
entitled to continued coverage for a period of six months following termination.

In the event of a change in control that results in either the dismissal of the executive or the executive's voluntary
resignation for any reason within 30 days thereafter. the executive would be entitled to a severance payment equal to the
excess of (1) 2.99 times the “ base amount,” as defined in Section 280G(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. over (ii) the
sum of any other parachute payments. as defined under Section 280G(b)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, that the executive
receives on account of the change in control. Subject to the foregoing. the executive's life, health, accident. and disability
coverage would be continued for six months following termination and. in the event of executive's death. pay death benefits’
and health insurance (for the remainder of the six month period. if any) to the executive's surviving spouse. if any. In
addition. during the first year following a change in control. Mr. Goodwin would receive such severance payment if he
voluntarily terminates employment within 90 days of the occurrence of certain specificd events (for example. a required
move of his personal residence or a material reduction in his base compensation) which had not been agreed to in advance.
The aggregate payments that would be made to the executives assuming termination of employment under the foregoing
circumstances at December 31, 2004. and without regard to other severance payments would have been approximately
$1.000.000.

In addition, all directors of the Company have entered into Indemnification Agreements with the Company. For a
description of the terms of such Indemnification Agreements. see “Dircctors’ Compensation - - Indemnification
Agreements.”




Directors’ Compensation

Fees. The directors of the Company receive $900 per month in connection with their service on the Board of
Directors of the Company and $600 per month in connection with their service on the Board of Directors of First Financial.
Audit Committee members receive $300 per quarter and the Audit Committee Chairman reccives an additional $300 per
quartcr.

Incentive Compensation Plan and Sales Incentive Plan. The Company maintains the Incentive Compensation
Plan, the purpose of which is to provide incentive compensation for eligible employees and directors in the event the
Company achieves certain performance goals indicative of its profitability and stability. A mathematical formula set forth
“in the Incentive Plan determines three forms of incentive compensation that participants may receive: (i) quarterly cash
bonuses (“Bonuses”), (ii) restricted stock awards (“Restricted Stock™), and (iii) stock options (“Options”). For each yearin
which the Incentive Plan is in effect, the Company will pay each participant a Bonus equal to the product of (i) the
participant’s annual base salary or director’s fees, and (ii) a “Bonus Percentage,” defined as the sum of (a) “Safe ROA
Bonus Percentage™ which considers return-on-assets (*“ROA”) compared to the median ROA of other members of a peer
group in the Southeast, the nonperforming assets (“NPA”) compared to the peer group and the CAMEL rating of First
Financial, plus (b) “Growth Rewards,” which are determined by the Board of Directors each year.

The Company maintains the Sales Incentive Plan, the purpose of which is to provide incentive compensation for
eligible employees in the event certain performance goals are met. The performance goals are set by the Committee and the
participant may receive quarterly cash bonuses (“Bonuses”). Certain participants of the Sales Incentive Plan are also
eligible for (i) restricted stock awards (“Restricted Stock”), and (ii) stock options (“Options”) awarded under the Incentive
Compensation Plan.

For each Incentive Compensation Plan and Sales Incentive Plan year, each participating key employee and
director will receive a Restricted Stock award in the form of a right, conditioned on the participant’s future performance of
services, to shares of Common Stock. On a per capita basis, non-employee directors receive in the aggregate, shares of
Restricted Stock having an aggregate fair market value equal to 10% of the total Bonuses paid to directors and key
employees for such year. On a pro rata basis, key employees receive a Restricted Stock award based on their relative
compensation equal to 20% of the total Bonuses paid to directors and key employees for such year. Vesting of Restricted
Stock awards will generally occur at the rate of 33 1/3% per year of a participant’s service after the date of the Restricted
Stock award. Vesting will be accelerated to 100% upon a participant’s retirement at or after age 65, death, discharge from
service for any reason other than cause, or a change in control of the Company. In the event of a change in control, a
participant will be entitled to receive Incentive Plan benefits for the Plan year based on the number of days during the year
in which the Incentive Compensation Plan was in effect and the benefits paid to the participant during the preceding three
Incentive Compensation Plan years.

In addition, for each Incentive Compensation Plan year, each participating key employee and director will receive
Options to purchase five times the number of shares subject to a Restricted Stock award granted to the participant for such
year.

1995 Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to the 1995 Stock Option Plan, directors and selected employees of the
Company and its affiliates are eligible to receive options to acquire shares of Common Stock, stock appreciation rights and
restricted stock awards (collectively, the “Awards”). Effective May 19, 1998, each director of the Company received a
restricted stock award for 2,000 shares of Common Stock that vests at the rate of 20% per year of service and accelerates to
100% upon a Change in Control. as defined in the 1995 Stock Option Plan, or termination of service due to death,
disability, or retirement after age 65. Awards may also be granted at the discretion of a committee that is comprised solely
of non-employee members of the Board of Directors. Participants may elect to defer receipt of all or a percentage of shares
that would otherwise be transferred upon the vesting of a restricted stock award.

Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company maintains a Deferred Compensation Plan pursuant to which
directors, officers and select employees may annually elect to defer the receipt of Board fees and up to 25% of their salary.
In June 1998, the Company merged the Directors’ Retirement Plan with and into the Deferred Compensation Plan.
Associated with the Deferred Compensation Plan is a separate grantor trust to which all fee and salary deferrals may be
contributed. The trust assets will be used to pay benefits to participants, but are subject to the claims of general creditors

11



until distributed from the trust. Subject to the guidelines under the Deferred Compensation Plan. cach participant may clect
(1) the time and manner under which his or her Plan benefit will be paid. and (i1) the measure of the deemed investment
return on his or her deferred compensation account. Such return may be based in whole or part on either the rate of return
on Common Stock or First Financial's highest yielding onc-year certificate of deposit. A participant who clects the
Company’s common stock rate of return will be distributed shares of the Company’s common stock when his or her plan
benefit is paid. Each director of the Company, whenever clected or appointed and whether or not also cmployed by the
Company. is also entitled to receive an initial credit to his or her account of $71.000. which will vest based on his or her
overall years of service as a director of the Company. Vested benefits become payable at the clection of a participant as
made one year prior to distribution. If a participant dics prior to collecting his or her entire vested hbeneft under the
Deferred Compensation Plan. the value of such vested but unpaid benefit will be paid to the dircctor’s designated
beneficiary or estate. The Company will contribute amounts to the trust equal to the accrued expense for Plan benefits. The
trust assets equal or exceed the amount of the individual participant accounts at December 31. 2004. The Board of
Directors of the Company is responsible for management of the operation and administration of the Deferred Compensation
Plan and has the discretion to amend the Plan and the related trust agreements {subject to participant consent as to vested
benefits).

2001 Srock Incentive Plan. Pursuant to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, directors and selected employees of the
Company and its affiliates are eligible to receive options to acquire shares of Common Stock, stock appreciation rights.
deferred share awards, restricted stock awards, other stock-based awards, reload options and non-stock awards in the form
of cash bonuses and credits to deferred compensation accounts. During fiscal 2003. the Board of Dircctors were each
granted 10,000 options to acquire shares of common stock at the market value on the date of grant. Of the options granted,
5,000 were exercisable immediately and 5,000 are exercisable in December 2004.

Indemnification Agreements. The Company has entered into Indemnification Agreements (the “Indemnification
Agreements”) with each of the Company’s directors and with certain officers of the Company and First Financial. The
Indemnification Agreements provide for retroactive as well as prospective indemnification to the fullest extent permitted by
law against any and all expenses (inciuding attorneys’ fees and all other costs and obligations), judgments, fines. penalties
and amounts paid in settlement in connection with any claim or proceeding arising out of that person’s service as an officer
or director of the Company or First Financial. The Indemnification Agreements also provide for the prompt advancement of
expenses to the director or officer in connection with investigating, defending or being a witness or participating in any
proceeding. The Indemnification Agreements further provide a mechanism through which the director or officer may seek
court relief in the event the Company’s Board of Directors (or other person appointed by such Board) determines that the
director or officer would not be permitted to be indemnified under applicable law. The Indemnification Agreements impose
on the Company the burden of proving that the director or officer is not entitled to indemnification in any particular case.

Following a Change in Control, all determinations regarding a right to indemnity and a right lo advancement of
expenses shall be made by independent legal counsel to be selected by the director or officer and approved by the Board.
The Indemnification Agreements provide that a change in control shall be deemed o have occurred if (i) any “person” (as
such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act), other than a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities
under an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation owned directly or indirectly by the stockholders of the
Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company, is or becomes the “beneficial
owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under said Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or
more of the total voting power represented by the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, or (ii) during any 24-
consecutive-month-period, individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute the Board of Directors of the
Company and any new director whose election by the Board of Directors or nomination for election by the Company’s
stockholders was approved by a vole of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors then still in office who either were directors
at the beginning of the period or whose election or nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for any
reason (o constitute a majority thereof, or (iii) the stockholders of the Company approve a merger or consolidation of the
Company with any other corporation, other than a merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the
Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being
converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) at least 80% of the total power represented by the voting securities
of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation, or (iv) the
stockholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for the sale or
disposition by the Company (in one transaction or a serics of transactions) of all or substantially all the Company’s assets.
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In the event of a potential change in control, the director or officer may require the Company to establish a trust in an
amount sufficient to cover the anticipated claims under the agreement.

While not requiring the maintenance of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, the Indemnification
Agreements require that the directors and officers be provided with maximum coverage if there is such a policy. Further,

the Indemnification Agreements provide that if the Company pays a director or officer pursuant to an Indemnification
Agreement. the Company will be subrogated to such director’s or officer’s rights to recover from third parties.

Equity Compensation Plans
The following table summarizes the Company’s equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004:

Number of securities Number of securities

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,

remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

warrants and rights warrants and rights plans
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 339,959 $ 7.55 80.041
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders - - -
Total 339,959 $ 7.55 80.041

Transactions with Management

First Financial offers loans to officers and directors in the ordinary course of business. Such loans were made in
the ordinary course of business, were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those
prevailing for comparable transactions with non-affiliates and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or
present other unfavorable features.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected the firm of KPMG LLP (“KPMG?") as independent
accountants for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005. Representatives of KPMG are expected to be
present at the Meeting. They will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

Audit Fees and Other Matters

KPMG:provided audit services to the Company consisting of the annual audit of the Company’s 2003 and 2004
consolidated financial statements contained in the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-KSB and reviews of the
financial statements contained in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB for 2003 and 2004.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Fee Category 2004 % of Total 2003 % of Total
Audit Fees $ 76,500 80% $ 69,700 78%
Audit-Related Fees $ - --% 3 - --%
Tax Fees $ 19,500 20% $ 19.500 22%
All Other Fees $ -- -% 3 -- --%
Total Fees $ 96000 100% $ 89,200 100%

KPMG did not provide any advice regarding financial information systems design and implementation during

2003 and 2004.
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Audit Fees. These are fees related to professional services rendered in connection with the audit of the
Company's annual financial statements, reviews of the financial statements included in cach of the Company's Quarterly
Reports on Form [0-QSB. and accounting consultations that refate (o the audited financial statements and are necessary to
comply with generally accepted auditing standards.

Tax Fees. These are fees billed for professional services related to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning,
including services provided in connection with assistance provided in the preparation and filing of tax returns.

No fees were paid to KPMG for items which would have been classified as Audit Related Fees or All Other Fees
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Policy on Pre-approval of Audit and Permissible Non-audit Services

The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of non-audit services by the Company’s independent
auditor is compatible with maintaining audit independence and determined that the independent auditor should not be
engaged for non-audit services. The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit services provided by the
independent auditors. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services.
Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or
category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The independent auditors and management are required to
periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent auditors in
accordance with this pre-approval. and the fees for the services performed to date. In assessing requests for services by the
independent auditors, the Audit Committee considers whether these services are consistent with the auditors’ independence,
whether the independent auditors are likely to provide the most effective and efficient service based upon the auditors’
familiarity with the Company and whether the service could enhance the Company’s ability to manage or control risk or
improve audit quality. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis. Audit
services included only those services described above for “Audit Fees” and “Tax Fees.” All of the tax services and related
fees in 2004 were approved in advance by the Audit Committee.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors is not aware of any business to come before the Meeting other than the matters described
above in this Proxy Statement. However, if any other matters should properly come before the Meeting, as to which proxies
in the accompanying form confer discretionary authority, the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote such
proxy in respect thereof as directed by a majority of the Board of Directors. Under SEC rules and the Company's Bylaws, if
a stockholder notifies the Company of such stockholder’s intent to present a proposal at the Meeting after January 27, 2005,
the persons named in the accompanying proxy may exercise such discretionary voting authority if the proposal is raised at
the Meeting, without any discussion of the matter in this Proxy Statement.

MISCELLANEOUS

The cost of soliciting proxies will be borne by the Company. The Company will reimburse brokerage firms and
other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending proxy materials to the
beneficial owners of common stock. In addition to solicitations by mail, directors. officers and regular employees of the
Company may solicit proxies personally or by telegraph or telephone without additional compensation.

The Company’s 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders, which includes the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
KSB for the year ended December 31. 2004, including the financial statements and financial statement schedules therto, as
filed with the SEC is enclosed with this Proxy Statement. Any stockholder who has not reccived a copy of such Annual
Report may obtain a copy by writing to the Secretary of the Company. Such Annual Report is not to be treated as a part of
the proxy solicitation material nor as having been incorporated herein by reference.




STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Itis expected that the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on or about April 25, 2006. In order to
be eligible for inclusion in the Company’s proxy materials for the 2006 Annual Meeting, any stockholder proposal to take
action at such meeting must be received at the Company's main office at 1630 Fourth Avenue North, Bessemer, Alabama
35020, no later than November 23, 2005. With respect to the 2006 Annual Meeting, notice of a stockholder proposal,
which the stockholder has not previously sought to include in the Company’s proxy materials, is required under the
Company’s Bylaws to be received by January 25, 2006. Under SEC rules, if a stockholder notifies the Company of such
stockholder’s intent to present a proposal for consideration at the 2006 Annual Meeting after such date, the Company,
acting through the persons named as proxies in the proxy materials for such meeting, may exercise discretionary voting
authority with respect to such proposal without including information regarding such proposal in its proxy materials.
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to require the Company to include in its proxy materials relating to the 2006
Annual Meeting, or to consider and vote upon at such meeting, any stockholder proposal which does not meet all of the
requirements established by the SEC or the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in effect at the time such
proposal is received.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Lynn J. Joyce
Secretary
Bessemer, Alabama
March 23, 2005
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APPENDIX A
FIRSTKFED BANCORP, INC.
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. PURPOSE

The primary function of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of FirstFed Bancorp. Inc. (the “Company™) is
its oversight responsibilities by reviewing: the financial reports and other financial information provided by the Company:
the Company's internal controls regarding finance, accounting. legal compliance and cthics that management and the Board
have established; and the Company's auditing, accounting and financial reporting processes gencrally. Consisient with this
function, the Audit Committee should encourage continuous improvement of, and should foster adherence to. the
Company's policies, procedures and practices at all levels. The Audit Committee's primary dutics and responsibilities are
1o:

®  Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor the Company’s financial reporting process and internal
control system.

& Review and appraise the audit efforts of the Company's independent accountants and compliance/internal
auditing department.

® Provide an open avenue of communication among the independent accountants, financial and senior
management, the compliance/internal auditing department. and the Board of Directors.

II. COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee shall be composed of all directors who are independent of the management of the Company. are
free of any relationship that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, would interfere with their exercise of independent
judgment as a committee member and are independent as defined in applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the National Association of Securities Dealers, {nc. At least one member will have past employment
experience in finance or accounting, requisite professional certification in accounting, or any other comparable experience
or background which results in the individual’s financial sophistication. All members should be able to read and
understand financial statements, including a balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement. If a member of the
Committee is an “Audit Committee financial expert,” as defined by applicable legislation and regulation. that fact must be
determined by the Committee and reported to the Board. T

I11. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES
In carrying out its responsibilities, the Audit Committee will:
®  Have full access to books, records, facilities and personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries.

®  Select, appoint, compensate, oversee and, if necessary, discharge the independent auditors to be selected to audit
the financial statements of the Company. Confirm and assure the independence of the independent auditors.
Receive from the independent auditors a formal written statement delineating all relationships between the
auditor and the Company, consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard 1, and actively engage in
dialogue with the auditor with respect to any disclosed relationship or services that may impact the objectivity
and independence of the auditor and take, or recommend that the full Board of Directors take, appropriate action
to oversee the independence of the outside auditor.

®  Review with the independent auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial controls of
the Company, and elicit any recommendations for the improvement of such internal control procedures or
particular areas where new or more detailed controls or procedures are desirable.

® Review the compliance/internal audit function of the Company including the independence and authority of its
reporting obligations, and the proposed audit plans for the coming year.
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Recceive prior to cach meeting, a summary of findings from completed compliance/internal audits.

Review the Company's major financial risk exposures with management and steps management has taken to
monttor and control such exposures.

Review the financial statements contained in the annual report to shareholders with management and the
independent auditors to determine that the independent auditors are satisfied with the disclosure and content of
the financial statements to be presented to the shareholders. Any changes in accounting principles should be
reviewed,

The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall review interim financial reports before filing with the regulators, and
consider whether they are complete and consistent with information known to Committee member.

Provide sufficient opportunity for the independent auditors to meet with the members of the- Audit Committee
without members of management present. Among the items to be discussed in these meetings are the
independent auditors’ evaluation of the Company’s financial, accounting, and auditing personnel, and the
cooperation that the independent auditors received during the course of the audit.

Pre-approve all services to be provided by the independent auditors, including audit services and permitted audit-
related and non-audit services. Without prior approval of the Audit Committee, the independent auditors will not
be retained for non-audit or non-tax services.

Investigate any matter brought to its attention within the scope of its duties, with the power to retain outside
counsel for this purpose if, in its judgment, that is appropriate.

Review and update the Audit Committee's Charter annually requesting Board approval for proposed changes, and
ensure appropriate disclosure as may be required by law or regulation.

Determine whether the relationship between the existing independent auditors and the Company complies with
applicable law, regulation and listing standards.

Resolve any disagreements between management and the independent auditors regarding financial reporting.
Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. Management also is responsible for maintaining appropriate accounting and financial
reporting principles and policies as well as internal controls and procedures designed to assure compliance with
accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. The independent auditors are responsible for planning
and performing proper audits, including an audit of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements filed
on Form 10-KSB, and other procedures, including reviews of the Company’s unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements prior to the filing of each quarterly report filed on Form 10-QSB.

Establish appropriate procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees regarding

questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Establish a:Code of Ethics for the Company’s senior financial officials and approve any change in or waiver of
the Code.

Conduct an annual self-evaluation of the Committee's effectiveness.




